
  

[ ] Indicates Date of Previous Referenced Council Meeting                                                                         Posted:   8/18/2016 
 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that a special meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Platteville shall be held on Tuesday, August 23, 2016 at 5:00 PM in the Mound City Bank 
Conference Room at 25 E. Pine Street, Platteville, WI. 

 
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA  

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. ROLL CALL  

 
III. WORK SESSION- Three Year Strategic Plan 

 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE  

 
PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of 
Platteville shall be held on Tuesday, August 23, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the Council Chambers at                
75 North Bonson Street, Platteville, WI. 

 
COMMON COUNCIL AGENDA  

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. ROLL CALL  

 
III. PUBLIC HEARING – Zoning Ordinance 16-14 Repealing & Recreating Section 22.11 Signs & 

Portions of 22.06 Specific Standards [8/9/16] 
1. Staff Presentation 4.    Public Statements in General 
2. Applicant Statement 5.    Council Discussion 
3. Public Statements in Favor 6.    Close Public Hearing 
4. Public Statements Against 7.    Common Council Action 

 
IV. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT CALENDAR – The following items may be approved on a 

single motion and vote due to their routine nature or previous discussion.  Please indicate to the Council 
President if you would prefer separate discussion and action. 

A. Council Minutes – 8/9/16 Regular 
B. Payment of Bills 
C. Appointments to Boards & Commissions 
D. Licenses 

1. Change of Agent for Wal-Mart Stores East LP, Bentonville, AR (Ryan S 
Langenecker, Agent), for Premises at 1800 Progressive Pkwy 

2. One-Year and Two-Year Operator License to Sell/Serve Alcohol 



  

[ ] Indicates Date of Previous Referenced Council Meeting                                                                         Posted:   8/18/2016 
 

 

E. Permits 
1. Run/Walk Permit to Suicide Prevention Resource Center for Ben’s Hope on 

September 24 
2. Street Closing Permits 

a. Hickory Street from Greenwood Avenue to Pine Street for Newman 
Olympics on September 30 

b. Jay, Irene and Hickory Streets for Homecoming Parade Staging Area on 
October 15 
 

V. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS and PETITIONS, if any – Please limit 
comments to no more than five minutes. 
 

VI.     REPORTS  
A. Board/Commission/Committee Minutes (Council Representative) 

1. Rountree Gallery Board (Westaby) 6/2/16 
2. Commission on Aging (Westaby) 6/17/16 
3. Board of Appeals – Zoning (Nall) 6/20/16 & 7/18/16 
4. Library Board (Westby) 7/5/16 

B. Other Reports 
1. Downtown Parking Task Force 

 
VII. ACTION  

A. Resolution 16-18 Approving the Platteville Main Street Inc. Wireless Project [8/9/16] 
 

VIII. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 
A. Storm Water Management Plan 
B. Bicycle Routes 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 

  
 
 

 

If your attendance requires special accommodation, write City Clerk, P.O. Box 780, Platteville, WI  

53818 or call (608) 348-9741 Option 6. 



City of Platteville 
STAFF REPORT AND FISCAL NOTE 

 
     x     Original                  Update 
 

 

Title: 
Zoning Ordinance Amendments:  Signage 
 
Policy Analysis Statement: 
Brief Description And Analysis Of Proposal: 

Section 22.11 of the zoning ordinance includes regulations regarding signage.  In response to several complaints, Staff recently 
stepped up the enforcement of the regulations regarding temporary signage.  As a result, the community has brought to the attention 
of Staff some issues with the regulations as they are currently written.  Many of the businesses feel the regulations are too 
restrictive, and they also have commented that the regulations are difficult to understand.   
 
To address these issues, Staff is proposing several changes to the ordinance, primarily to address the issues with temporary signage.  
To make the ordinance easier to understand, several definitions regarding temporary signs were added, and all the rules regarding 
temporary signs were placed in a new section.  The section is organized by residential signs and non-residential signs, and includes 
permit-exempt signs and signs that require a permit.   
 
Additional changes were made in response to a U.S. Supreme Court decision regarding sign regulations.  The 2015 court decision 
essentially states that community signage regulations cannot regulate signs based on the content of the signs.  In other words, the 
content on the signs is considered a type of speech and our ability to have regulations that are different for signs with different 
content could potentially be considered a violation of free speech requirements.  In response, the section regarding temporary signs 
now only provides general regulations regarding location, size, duration, etc. for all temporary signs.   
 
The proposed changes also include a slightly different definition for “Sign” that somewhat narrows what would be considered a sign 
and subject to the regulations.  There are also some minor changes being proposed to Section 22.06 regarding signage for home-
based businesses and some other changes to address issues that Staff has noticed over the years.   
 
Another related issue regarding signage is related to the cost of sign permits.  The current fee schedule treats permanent signs and 
temporary signs the same regarding the cost of the permit.  This means that all signs would have a minimum fee of $50, including 
temporary signs.  Staff is proposing to have the permit fees be different for temporary signs and permanent signs.   
 
Due to the number of edits in the ordinance, the document was becoming difficult to read and understand.  In response there is 
attached a marked-up copy with all the revisions identified, and a copy with none of the edits identified.   
 
Attached are several documents related to the matter: 

 
 Proposed revisions to Section 22.11 and 22.06, in which the new language is underlined and the deleted language is stricken. 
 The proposed codes without the changes marked.   
 A proposed sign permit fee schedule.    
 Summary information regarding the U.S. Supreme Court Case – Town of Gilbert v Reed  

 
Recommendation: 
The Plan Commission reviewed the proposal at their August 1, 2016 meeting and recommended approval of the code amendments and 
sign permit fee changes. 
 
Staff also recommends approval of the proposed amendments.   
 
Impact Of Adopting Proposal: 
Adopting the proposal will amend the zoning regulations regarding signage. 
 
 
Fiscal Estimate: 
Fiscal Effect (check/circle all that apply) 
  x   No fiscal effect 
___ Creates new expenditure account 
___ Creates new revenue account 
       Decreases expenditures 
       Increases revenues 
___ Increases/decreases fund balance - ____________ Fund 

Budget Effect: 
___ Expenditure authorized in budget 
  X   No change to budget required 
___ Expenditure not authorized in budget 
       Budget amendment required 
Vote Required: 
   X   Majority                    Two-Thirds 

Narrative/assumptions About Long Range Fiscal Effect: 
Approval of the request will not have a fiscal impact.   
 
 



Expenditure/Revenue Changes: 
Budget Amendment No. ________ No Budget Amendment Required __x____ 

 
Account Number 

 
Account Name 

Budget Prior 
to Change 

 
Debit 

 
Credit 

Amended 
Budget 

Fund CC Account Object      
         
         
    Totals     
 
Prepared By: 
Department:  Community Planning & Development 
Prepared By:  Joe Carroll 

 
Date:  August 2, 2016 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

1 
 

22.11  SIGNS.  
 
(A) PERMIT REQUIRED.  No sign shall hereafter be located, erected, moved, 

reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted, or structurally altered except so as to 
comply with the provisions of this section.  It shall be unlawful for any person to locate, 
erect, construct, enlarge or structurally modify a sign or cause the same to be done 
within the City of Platteville without first obtaining a sign permit for each sign from the 
Building Inspector, unless specifically exempted by this Section.  All signs requiring 
review under the provisions of Chapter 27, Historic Preservation, shall meet the 
requirements of that Chapter in addition to the requirements of this section. 

 
(B) GENERAL REGULATIONS 
 

(1) Conflicts.  In the case of conflicting sign requirements and limitations, the more 
stringent shall apply. 

 
(2) Advertising.  Other than billboards, political signs and temporary signs as 

permitted by this Section, signs shall advertise only those locations, products, 
goods, or services available upon the same premises as the sign. 

 
(3) Installation.  All signs shall be properly secured, supported and braced.  Signs 

shall not be fastened to window frames.  Every sign and its framework, braces, 
anchors and other supports shall be constructed of such material and with 
such workmanship as to be safe and satisfactory to the Building Inspector.  

 
(4) Maintenance.  All signs, including supports and attachments, shall be kept in 

reasonable structural condition and shall be kept clean and well painted at all 
times. 

 
(5) Blanketing.  Blanketing of signs shall not be allowed. 

 
(6) Illumination.  When permitted, both indirect and directly illuminated signs shall 

concentrate light only upon the area of the sign.  Light sources shall be 
shielded as necessary to prevent glare upon the street or adjacent properties. 

 
(C) DEFINITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS.  The following definitions and sign 

requirements shall apply to all signs.  Refer to Section 22.11(G) for regulations 
specific to each zoning district, and to Section 22.11(H) for regulations specific to 
temporary signs. 

 
(1) Area of Sign.  The entire area within a single perimeter enclosing the extreme 

limits of a sign, not including any structural elements.  The area of a multiple-
faced or irregular-shaped sign shall be computed on the basis of the smallest 
area of the sign that can be enclosed by two contiguous rectangles.  Only one 
side of a double-faced sign shall be used in computing the area of a sign, 
provided that the information on both sides is the same. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

2 
 

   
(2) Awning.  A hood or cover that projects from the wall of a building, which can 

be retracted, folded or collapsed against the face of a supporting structure. 
 

(3) Banner Sign.  Any temporary sign of lightweight fabric, vinyl or similar material 
that is intended to promote a business, product or event.  National, state or 
municipal flags shall not be considered a banner sign.   

 
(3)(4) Billboard.  A sign that advertises goods, products or facilities, or services not 

on the premises where the sign is located or is intended to direct persons to 
a different location from where the sign is located.  Also known as an off-
premise advertising sign. 

 
(4)(5) Blanketing.  The unreasonable obstruction of view of a sign caused by the 

placement of another sign. 
 

(5)(6) Building Frontage.  The horizontal width of a building where it is oriented 
towards the right-of-way.  On a corner lot, each face of the building facing a 
right-of-way is considered a separate building frontage. 

 
(6)(7) Building Sign.  A sign attached to, painted on or made a part of a wall or a 

projection of a wall on a building, or erected upon or over the roof or parapet 
of any building.  For the purposes of this Ordinance, there are four types of 
building signs. 

 
(a) Awning/Canopy/Marquee Sign.  Any sign attached to or made part of 

an awning, canopy or marquee, including any sign hanging from 
underneath the awning, canopy or marquee.  Hanging signs may not 
be lower than 8 feet above a walkway or public sidewalk. 

 
(b) Wall Sign.  Any sign attached to, erected on or painted on the wall of a 

building or structure and projecting not more than twelve (12) inches 
from such wall. 

 
(c) Projecting Sign.  Any sign extending more than twelve (12) inches, but 

no more than five (5) feet from the face of a wall or building.  Projecting 
signs may not be lower than eight (8) feet above a walkway or public 
sidewalk. 

 
(d) Roof Sign.  Any sign erected upon or over the roof or parapet of any 

building.  The highest point of the sign may not be more than fifteen 
(15) feet above the roof surface or the coping of the building.  The 
combined height of the building and the sign shall not exceed the 
height requirement for the zoning district in which it is located. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

3 
 

(8) Canopy (or Marquee).  A shelter attached to or connected with a building to 
provide cover over a door, entrance, window or outdoor service area. 
 

(7)(9) Construction/Development Sign.  Any temporary sign giving the name or 
names of contractors, architects, lending institutions, funding sources, 
responsible for construction on the site where the sign is placed, together with 
other pertinent information included theron. 

 
(8)(10) Directly Illuminated Sign.  Any sign designed to give artificial light directly 

through a transparent or translucent material from a source of light originating 
within or upon such sign. 

 
(9)(11) Directional Sign.  Any sign which provides instruction or direction and is 

located entirely on a property to which it pertains, or adjacent to a driveway 
serving the property, and does not exceed eight (8) square feet in area and 
does not include any logo or does not otherwise advertise a business in any 
way.  This includes, but is not limited to, such signs as those identifying 
entrances and exists, drive-through windows, restrooms, telephones, and 
parking areas. 

 
(10)(12) Electronic Message Unit Sign.  Any sign on which the message may 

be changed by an electronic process, including such messages as copy, art, 
graphics, time, date, temperature, weather or information concerning civic and 
charitable events or the advertising of products or services available on the 
premises.  This also includes traveling or segmented message displays. 

 
(11)(13) Flashing Elements.  Portions of any directly or indirectly illuminated 

sign (except for Electronic Message Unit signs) which contain artificial light 
which is not maintained stationary and constant in intensity and/or color at all 
times when in use.  Where signs with flashing elements are permitted, the 
intensity of any single bulb or other light-emitting source cannot exceed 
twenty-five (25) watts.  Bare reflecting-type bulbs of any kind are not allowed 
as flashing elements unless they are properly shaded so as not to interfere 
with surrounding properties.  No more than twenty-five (25) percent of the area 
of any sign may contain flashing elements. 

 
(12)(14) Fraternity/Sorority Sign.  A sign on a fraternity or sorority house which 

is recognized by the University of Wisconsin-Platteville, which contains only 
the name, Greek letters, and/or recognized logo of the fraternity/sorority. 

 
(13)(15) Freestanding Sign.  Any permanent sign which is supported by 

structures or supports in or upon the ground and independent of support from 
any building. 

 
(14)(16) Height of Sign.  The distance measured from the established grade at 

the ground level of the sign to the top-most element of the sign structure. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

4 
 

 
(15)(17) Indirectly Illuminated Sign.  A sign that is illuminated from a source 

outside of the actual sign, which is directed at the sign and is installed for the 
purpose of sign illumination. 

 
(16)(18) Institutional Sign.  A sign for a public, educational, charitable or 

religious institution, which may include areas for movable copy. 
 

(17)(19) Movable Board Sign.  A two-sided sign designed to be temporarily 
placed on the sidewalk outside of a business that advertises goods or services 
available therein.  A movable board sign located on a public sidewalk shall 
only be displayed during the hours the business is open, may not be fixed in 
a permanent position, shall not be located in front of another business, and 
may not be illuminated. The City accepts no liability for any movable board 
sign placed on a public right-of-way.   

 
(18)(20) Multi-Family Complex Sign.  A freestanding sign that displays the 

name of a multi-family apartment complex and related information (such as 
the phone number, vacancy status, etc.). 

 
(19)(21) Neighborhood Identification Sign.  A sign displaying the name of a 

particular neighborhood or subdivision located at the entrance to said area.  A 
Neighborhood Identification sign may be illuminated and may be combined 
with a brick, masonry or stone wall and landscaping. 

 
(20)(22) Nonconforming Sign.  Any sign which does not conform to the 

regulations of this Section. 
 

(23) Occupant Frontage.  In a multi-tenant building, the horizontal width of the 
business occupancy parallel to the front of the building or to its main entrance.  
In the case of an end unit with a wall face that faces a street right-of-way, each 
wall face may be considered a separate occupancy frontage. 

 
(24) Personal Greeting/Congratulatory Sign.  A temporary sign with a non-

advertising message providing a greeting or message to announce, 
congratulate or welcome.   

 
(25) Public Event Sign.  A temporary sign displaying information of interest to the 

general community regarding scheduled public events, public activities, 
fundraising events, religious or educational events or activities, or events of a 
philanthropic entity.  Such signs shall not include product advertisement or an 
activity for private profit.   

 
(21)(26) Political Message Sign.  A temporary sign supporting a candidate for 

office or urging action on any other matter on the ballot of a primary, general 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

5 
 

or special election or urging that a matter be placed on a ballot of a primary, 
general or special election. 

 
(22)(27) Portable Sign.  A temporary sign mounted to a rigid structure which is 

not permanently affixed to the ground and which can be moved from one 
location to another, not including a moveable board sign. 

 
(23)(28) Real Estate Sign.  Any sign that is used to offer for sale, lease or rent 

the property upon which the sign is placed. 
 

(29) Sign.  A sign shall include anything using words, letters, numbers, symbols or 
graphics that promotes, calls attention or invites patronage (or anything similar 
to the aforementioned) to a business, location, individual, event or product. 

 
(24)(30) Sign Setback.  The distance from any property line to the plane formed 

by the nearest edge or element of the sign structure, extended to the ground. 
 

(25)(31) Street Frontage.  The distance measured along the lot line adjacent to 
a public right-of-way.  Each separate street adjacent to a lot is considered a 
separate street frontage.  When multiple signs are allowed, each sign shall 
use the frontage along which it is intended to be viewed as its street frontage 
for the purposes of determining sign area. 

 
(32) Temporary Sign.  Any sign intended to be displayed for a limited period of 

time, including banners, movable board signs, portable signs, ground signs, 
flags, pennants, inflatable figures and balloons.  The signs may be used for 
advertising a product, business or publicizing a special event.  Seasonal or 
holiday lights, wreaths, trees, or other common holiday decorations are not 
considered temporary signs.  Temporary signs shall be erected so as not be 
loosened as a result of wind or weather and shall be properly maintained. 

 
(26)(33) Warning Sign.  Signs which are intended to warn of regulations, 

restrictions or safety hazards affecting the property, e.g. “No trespassing”, 
“beware of dog”, “no parking”, etc. 

 
(27)(34) Window Sign.  Any sign that is visible to the public located completely 

within a window, or attached to or painted upon the surface of a window of a 
building. 

 
(D) PERMIT-EXEMPT SIGNS.  The following signs are exempt from the requirement 

that a permit be obtained and, unless otherwise stated, are permitted in all zoning 
districts, (unless within the Historic Preservation District, in which case all applicable 
historic preservation provisions shall apply): 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

6 
 

(1) Construction signs.  Two per site, not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet in 
area each, confined to the site of construction, and removable thirty (30) days 
after completion of construction or prior to occupancy, whichever is sooner. 

 
(1) Commemorative plaques of recognized historic agencies, commemorative 

signs recognizing a historic event, site or person, or identification emblems 
of historical agencies, not exceeding eighteen (18) square feet. 
 

(2) Directional signs, in the Business and Manufacturing districts. 
 

(3) Emblems or insignia of any nation or political subdivision, or non-profit 
organization, provided such signs shall not be illuminated nor exceed two (2) 
square feet in area. 

 
(4) Government or official signs for the control of traffic and other regulatory 

purposes, danger signs, railroad crossing signs and signs of public utilities 
indicating danger, wayfinding signs, and aids to service or safety which are 
erected by or on the order of a public officer in the performance of his duty.  
Such signs shall be subject to approval by the Department of Public Works 
and the Building Inspector. 

 
(5) Home-based professional office signs, home occupation identification signs, 

Bed and Breakfast establishment signs, and professional office signs (in the 
R-3 District) when located on the same premises as an approved Conditional 
Use.  Such signs may not be illuminated and are limited to four (4) square feet 
in area.  See Section 22.06 for further regulations. 

 
(5)(6) House numbers and name plates not exceeding two (2) square feet in area 

for each residential, institutional, business or manufacturing building. 
 

(6)(7) Interior signs.  Signs located within the interior of any building or structure 
which are not visible from the public right-of-way.  This does not, however, 
exempt such signs from the structural, electrical or material specifications of 
this or any other applicable code, statute, or ordinance. 

 
(7)(8) Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings and date of erection, inscriptions 

or emblems, which are cut into masonry surface or inlaid so as to be part of a 
building or when constructed of bronze or other non combustible material not 
more than 4 square feet in area and affixed flat against the structure. 

 
(8)(9) Municipal signs.  Signs erected by the City of Platteville upon municipal 

property, buildings, parks or public recreational facilities. 
 

(9) No trespassing and no dumping signs, not to exceed 1 ½ square feet in area. 
 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

7 
 

(10) Official notices posted by public officers or employees in the performance of 
their duties. 

 
Political and campaign signs on behalf of candidates for public office or 
measures on election ballots, provided that such signs are subject to the 
following regulations: 

 
(a) Such signs may be erected not earlier than 45 days prior to the primary 

election and shall be removed within 7 days following the general 
election. 

 
(b) Such signs may not be erected on any public right-of-way or other 

public property. 
 

(11) Real estate signs. 
 

(12)(11) Religious symbols, commemorative plaques of recognized historic 
agencies, or identification emblems of religious orders or historical agencies. 

 
(13) Temporary public announcement and public service signs, provided the size, 

character, quality and message on each sign is specifically approved by the 
Common Council and further provided that prior to erection, an individual or 
group shall indicate to the Common Council that he/she or it shall be 
responsible for the maintenance of such sign.  Such signs may be of a type, 
size and character approved by the Common Council, not withstanding any 
regulations or restrictions contained in this chapter. 

(12) University Signs.  Signs erected by the University of Wisconsin-Platteville on 
University-owned property. 
 

(14)(13) Warning Signs. 
 

(14) Window signs.  Signs attached or affixed to the surface of a window; however, 
window signs located within a designated Historic District must first be 
approved by the Historic Preservation Commission in accordance with the 
requirements of Chapter 27. 

 

(15) Temporary Signs.  Some temporary signs are permit exempt, as described in 
Section (H).   

 
(E) PROHIBITED SIGNS.  The following signs are prohibited: 
 

(1) Signs containing any obscene, indecent, or immoral matter. 
 

(2) Signs which interfere with the safe conduct of travel on sidewalks, streets and 
highways.  Advertising signs that are similar in appearance to traffic control 
signs and devices are prohibited. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

8 
 

 
(3) Any other sign that creates an unreasonable hazard or threat to public safety 

is hereby prohibited. 
 

(4) Signs (other than billboards) which advertise a product or business which is 
no longer available or carried on upon the premises on which the sign is 
located.  Such signs shall be removed within twelve (12) months of the 
cessation of such sales or business. 

 
(F) APPLICATION FOR A SIGN PERMIT 
 

(1) Application for a sign permit shall be made in writing upon a form furnished by 
the Building Inspector.  With such application there shall be submitted plans 
showing: 

 
(a) Location or position of the sign structure on the lot or building on which 

it shall be attached or erected, and 
 
(b) Drawings and specifications showing area, height, location and 

setback of the sign, method of construction, and attachment to the 
building or other structure, or anchoring in the ground. 

 
(c) Any other information deemed necessary by the Building Inspector to 

meet the requirements of this Section. 
 

(2) Permit fees shall be in the amount as established from time to time by the 
Common Council. 

 
(G) ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS FOR PERMANENT SIGNS 
 

(1) Residential Districts: 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the R-1, R-2, and R-3 districts.  Allowable temporary signs are 
described in Section (H).: 

 
1. Institutional Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty (30) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
2. Multi-Family Complex Signs, in the R-3 District only. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty- Five (35) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (50) feet. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

9 
 

 
3. Neighborhood Identification Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Twenty (20) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
4. Fraternity/Sorority Signs, where such uses are permitted. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Twenty (20) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (50) feet. 

 
5. Home Occupation Signs, where such uses are permitted, 

subject to the standards in 22.06 or as approved as part of CUP. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Four (4) square feet. 
 

(b) Illumination:  The above permitted signs may be illuminated, except for 
the Home Occupation Signs.  Flashing elements are prohibited. 

 
(2) I-1 and C-1 Districts. 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the I-1 Institutional and C-1 Conservation districts for all Specified 
and approved Conditional Uses.  Allowable temporary signs are 
described in Section (H).: 

 
1. Building and Freestanding Signs. 

 
a. Building Sign Maximum Area:  One (1) square foot per 

each linear foot of building frontage. 
b. Freestanding Sign Maximum Area:  One square foot per 

each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
150 75 square feet.  Maximum Height:  Ten (10) feet.  
Minimum Setback:  Five (5) feet. 

 
2. Temporary signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Number per Lot:  One (1). 
c. Time Limit:  No temporary sign may be erected for a 

special exceeding two (2) weeks.  Only four such two-
week periods will be permitted per each premises in a 
single calendar year, unless extended by the Common 
Council. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

10 
 

 
3. Portable signs, for up to 48 hours preceding and during a 

special event, such as a church bazaar, picnic, or like event. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
d. Number Per Lot: One (1) 

 
(b) Illumination.  All permitted signs, except temporary signs, may be 

illuminated.  Flashing elements are prohibited. 
 
(3) B-1 District: 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the B-1 Neighborhood Business District, subject to the requirements 
herein.  Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H).: 

 
1. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  One (1) square foot per 

each linear foot of building frontage or, in the case of a 
multi-tenant building, one square foot per each linear 
foot of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building or Occupancy:  Multiple 
building signs are permitted, but the total area of all signs 
may not exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
2. Freestanding Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  One (1) square foot per each linear foot 

of street frontage, up to a maximum of seventy-five (75) 
square feet. 

b. Maximum Height:  Twenty-five (25) feet. 
c. Maximum per Lot:  One (1). 

 
3. Institutional Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Thirty (30) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height:  Ten (10) feet for freestanding signs. 
c. Minimum Setback:  Five (5) feet. 

 
4. Temporary signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Number per Lot:  One (1). 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

11 
 

c. Time Limit:  No temporary sign may be erected for a 
period exceeding two (2) weeks.  Only four such two-
week periods will be permitted per each premises in a 
single calendar year, unless extended by the Common 
Council. 

 
5. Portable signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square fee. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
d. Number Per Lot: One (1) 

 
(b) Illumination.  All permitted signs except temporary signs may be 

illuminated.  Flashing elements are prohibited. 
 

(4) CBT District. 
 

(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 
in the CBT Central Business Transition District, subject to the 
requirements herein.  Allowable temporary signs are described in 
Section (H).: 

 
1. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  One and a half (1.5) square 

feet per each linear foot of building frontage or, in the 
case of a multi-tenant building, one and a half square 
feet per each linear foot of occupant frontage. 

 
b. Maximum Number per Building or Occupancy:  Multiple 

building signs are permitted, but the total area of all signs 
may not exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
2. Institutional signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty (30) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (50) feet. 

 
3. Freestanding Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  One and a half (1.5) square feet per 

each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
100 square feet. 

b. Maximum per Lot: One (1). 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

12 
 

c. Maximum Height: Twenty Five (25) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
4. Movable Board Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Ten (10) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: 42 inches. 

 
5.4. Multi-Family Complex Signs, and only when allowed as a 

conditional use. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Thirty-five (35) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
6.5. Fraternity/Sorority Signs, only when allowed as a conditional 

use. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Twenty (20) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 

    c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
 

7. Temporary Signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Number per Lot: One (1) 
d. Time Limit:  No temporary sign may be erected for a 

period exceeding two (2) weeks.  Only four such two-
week periods will be permitted per each premises in a 
single calendar year, unless extended by the Common 
Council. 

 
8. Portable Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
d. Number Per lot: One (1). 

 
(b) Illumination.  All signs in the CBT districts may be illuminated (except 

movable board signs and temporary signs).  Flashing elements (except 
for Electronic Message Unit signs) are prohibited. 

 
(5) B-2 District. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

13 
 

(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 
in the B-2 Central Business District, subject to the requirements 
herein:.  Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H). 

 
1. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  Two (2) square feet per 

each linear foot of building frontage or, in the case of a 
multi-tenant building, two square feet per each linear foot 
of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building or Occupancy:  Multiple 
building signs are permitted, but the total area of all signs 
may not exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
2. Electronic Message Unit Signs: 

 
a. The maximum area dedicated to an electronic message 

unit shall be 50 percent of the sign area or 35 square feet 
(whichever is larger) per sign face and shall be inclusive 
of the maximum area permitted for the sign structure. 

 
3. Freestanding Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Two (2) square feet for each linear foot 

of street frontage, up to a maximum of 150 square feet. 
b. Maximum per Lot:  One (1) per street frontage; however, 

for lots where a street frontage is 200 feet or more, one 
(1) additional sign is permitted along that frontage; 
however, the aggregate area of all signs may not exceed 
the maximum area noted above. 

c. Maximum Height: Twenty-five (25) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
4. Movable Board Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area: Ten (10) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: 42 inches. 

 
5. Temporary Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Number per Lot: One (1). 
b. Time Limit:  No temporary sign may be erected for a 

period exceeding two (2) weeks.  Only four such two-
week periods will be permitted per each premises in a 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

14 
 

single calendar year, unless extended by the Common 
Council. 

 
6. Portable Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
d. Number Per Lot: One (1) 

 
(b) Illumination.  All signs in the B-2 district may be illuminated (except 

movable board signs and temporary signs).  Flashing elements (except 
for Electronic Message Unit signs) are prohibited. 

 
(6) B-3 District. 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the B-3 Highway Business District, subject to the requirements 
herein.  Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H).: 

 
1. Billboard signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: 400 square feet per side. 
b. Maximum Height: 30 feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: 15 feet. 
d. Maximum Number per Lot:  For highways with speed 

limit <65 mph, one (1) per lot with a minimum spacing 
between signs of 500 feet of highway frontage.  For 
highways with speed limit 65 mph, one (1) per lot with a 
minimum spacing between signs of 1500 feet of highway 
frontage. 

e. Location:  Billboards are only allowed on lots that have 
frontage on a State or Federal highway, or a highway 
business route.  No billboards may be installed adjacent 
to or within 300 feet of an interchange, intersection at 
grade, off-ramp, safety rest area, or wayside.  Said 300 
feet shall be measured along the highway from the 
beginning or ending of the pavement widening at the exit 
from or entrance to the main-traveled way of the primary 
highway. 

f. Residential Setback:  Billboards shall be setback a 
minimum of four hundred feet (400’) from a property 
zoned residential, or from a structure used as a 
residence which is located on lands not zoned 
residential. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

15 
 

2. Building signs: 
 

a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square 
feet per each linear foot of building frontage or, in the 
case of a multi-tenant building, two and a half (2.5) 
square feet per each linear foot of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building:  Multiple building signs 
are permitted, but the total area of all signs may not 
exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
3. Electronic Message Unit signs. 

 
a. The maximum area dedicated to an electronic message 

unit shall be 50 percent of the sign area or 35 square feet 
(whichever is larger) per sign face and shall be inclusive 
of the maximum area permitted for the sign structure. 

 
4. Institutional signs.  Shall meet the applicable requirements for 

Building Signs and/or Freestanding Signs in this Section. 
 

5. Freestanding signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square feet for 
each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
200 square feet. 

b. Number Per Lot:  One (1) per street frontage; however, 
for lots where a street frontage is 200 feet or more, one 
(1) additional sign is permitted along that frontage; 
however, the aggregate area of all signs may not exceed 
the maximum area noted above. 

c. Maximum Height: Thirty (30) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
6. Movable Board Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Ten (10) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: 42 inches. 

 
7. Temporary Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Number per Lot: One (1) 
b. Time Limit:  No temporary sign may be erected for a 

period exceeding two (2) weeks.  Only four such two-
week periods will be permitted per each premises in a 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

16 
 

single calendar year, unless extended by the Common 
Council. 

 
8. Portable Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (50 feet. 
d. Number Per Lot: One (1). 

 
(b) Illumination.  All signs in the B-3 District may be illuminated (except 

movable board signs and temporary signs).  Flashing elements are 
permitted; however, flashing elements that may create a hazard as 
determined by the Zoning Administrator are prohibited. 

 
(7) Manufacturing Districts. 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the M-1, M-2, and M-4 districts, subject to the requirements herein.  
Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H).: 

 
1. Billboard signs; however, billboard signs are not permitted in the 

M-4 District. 
 
    a. Maximum Area: 400 square feet per side. 
    b. Maximum Height: 30 feet. 
    c. Minimum Setback: 15 feet. 

d. Maximum Number per Lot:  For highways with speed 
limit <65 mph, one (1) per lot with a minimum spacing 
between signs of 500 feet of highway frontage.  For 
highways with speed limit 65 mph, one (1) per lot with a 
minimum spacing between signs of 1500 feet of highway 
frontage. 

e. Location:  Billboards are only allowed on lots that have 
frontage on a State or Federal highway, or a highway 
business route.  No billboards may be installed adjacent 
to or within 300 feet of an interchange, intersection at 
grade, off-ramp, safety rest area, or wayside.  Said 300 
feet shall be measured along the highway from the 
beginning or ending of the pavement widening at the exit 
from or entrance to the main-traveled way of the primary 
highway. 

f. Residential Setback:  Billboards shall be setback a 
minimum of four hundred feet (400’) from a property 
zoned residential, or from a structure used as a 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

17 
 

residence which is located on lands not zoned 
residential. 

 
2. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square feet per 

each linear foot of building frontage or, in the case of a 
multi-tenant building, two and a half (2.5) square feet per 
each linear foot of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building:  Multiple building signs 
are permitted, but the total area of all signs may not 
exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
3. Electronic Message Unit Signs. 

 
a. The maximum area dedicated to an electronic message 

unit shall be 50 percent of the sign area or 35 square feet 
(whichever is larger) per sign face and shall be inclusive 
of the maximum area permitted for the sign structure. 

 
4.2. Institutional Signs.  Shall meet the applicable requirements for 

Building Signs and/or Freestanding Signs in this Section. 
 

5.3. Freestanding Signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square feet for 
each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
200 square feet. 

b. Number Per Lot:  One (1) per street frontage; however, 
for lots where a street frontage is 250 feet or more, one 
(1) additional pole sign is permitted along that frontage; 
however, the aggregate area of all signs may not exceed 
the maximum area noted above. 

c. Maximum Height: Thirty (30) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
6. Temporary Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Number per Lot: One (1) 
c. Time Limit:  No temporary sign may be erected for a 

period exceeding two (2) weeks.  Only four such two-
week periods will be permitted per each premises in a 
single calendar year, unless extended by the Common 
Council. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

18 
 

7. Portable Signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Fifty (50) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
d. Number Per Lot: One (1) 

 
(b) Illumination.  All signs in the manufacturing districts except temporary 

signs may be illuminated.  Flashing elements are permitted. 
 

(c) M-s Districts:  Standards for signs in the M-3 Industrial Park District 
regarding sign area, height, setback, number and illumination limitations 
shall directly relate to the individual zoning district for which the use is listed 
as a specified use. 

 
(H) REGULATIONS FOR TEMPORARY SIGNS 
 

(1) Residential Districts – Permit Exempt.  Temporary signs are allowed in the R-
1, R-2 and R-3 districts without a permit, subject to the following requirements: 
 
a) Except for signs approved by the Common Council, all signs shall be 

located entirely within the property boundaries. 
 

b) Signs shall not obstruct the visibility from any intersection or driveway. 
 

c) Signs shall be adequately supported and anchored.  Any sign that is 
frayed, damaged, dirty, worn, or that becomes loosened from its supports 
so that the sign is sagging, shall become an illegal sign and may be treated 
in the same manner as any other illegal sign under the provisions of this 
Chapter.  

 

d) Signs shall not be lit and shall not include any electrical, mechanical, video 
or audio device. 

 

a)e) Except for signs promoting a public event, charitable event or 
educational activity taking place at another location, signs must be 
promoting or otherwise related to a use that is permitted on the property 
where the sign is located. 

 

b)f) Signs related to a specific event or activity shall not be installed more than 
five (5) days prior to the start of such event or activity, and shall be 
removed within two (2) days following the event or activity.   

 

g) Total sign area shall not exceed sixteen (16) sq. ft. without a permit, and 
no individual sign shall exceed nine (9) sq. ft. in area. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

19 
 

 
(2) Residential Districts – Permit Required.  Additional signs beyond that 

identified in Section (H)(1) above shall require a sign permit.   
 
(a) A permit is required for each twelve (12) sq. ft. of additional sign area.   

 
(b) The additional permitted signs shall be allowed to remain for a maximum 

of fourteen (14) days per issued permit, and the property shall be limited 
to a maximum of four (4) additional permits per year. 
 

(c) The total area of temporary signs on any property is limited to a maximum 
of 0.5 sq. ft. of sign area for each foot of lot frontage. 

 
(3) Non-Residential Districts – Permit Exempt.  Temporary signs are allowed in 

the non-residential districts without a permit, subject to the following 
requirements: 
 
(a) Except for signs approved by the Common Council, and movable board 

signs in the B-2 District, all signs shall be located entirely within the 
property boundaries. 
 

(b) Signs shall not obstruct the visibility from any intersection or driveway, or 
the movement of pedestrians on a public sidewalk. 

 
(c) Signs shall be adequately supported and anchored.  Any sign that is 

frayed, damaged, dirty, worn, or that becomes loosened from its supports 
so that the sign is sagging, shall become an illegal sign and may be treated 
in the same manner as any other illegal sign under the provisions of this 
Chapter.  

 

(d) Signs shall not be lit and shall not include any electrical, mechanical, video 
or audio device. 

 

(e) Except for signs promoting a public event, charitable event or educational 
activity taking place at another location, signs must be promoting or 
otherwise related to a use that is permitted on the property where the sign 
is located. 

 

(f) Signs related to a specific event or activity shall not be installed more than 
five (5) days prior to the start of such event or activity, and shall be 
removed within two (2) days following the event or activity.   

 

(g) Total sign area shall not exceed sixteen (16) sq. ft. without a permit.   
 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

20 
 

(4) Non-Residential Districts – Permit Required.  Temporary signs in addition to 
the signs described in Section (H)(3) above are subject to a sign permit and 
the following requirements:  
 
(a) A permit is required for each sixteen (16) square feet of additional 

temporary sign area.  Each sign shall be allowed for a maximum of 
fourteen (14) days, and the business or entity shall be limited to a 
maximum of four (4) additional permits per year.   

 
(b) Special Event Signs:  Unlimited temporary signs are allowed with a permit 

for grand openings, sales, or other special events.  Signs for each event 
shall be allowed displayed for a maximum of thirty (30) days, and the 
property shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) events per year.   

 
 

(c) Except for Special Event Signs, the total amount of temporary signs 
allowed on a property is limited to a maximum of one and one-half (1.5) 
square feet of sign area for each linear feet of building frontage, or 
occupant building frontage for multi-tenant buildings.   

 
(I) NON-CONFORMING SIGNS. 
 

(1) All signs, except temporary signs, that are in existence as of the adoption of 
this ordinance and that do not conform to this Section shall be considered as 
non-conforming and are subject to the requirements of Section 22.12. 

 
(2) Signs that are legal but non-conforming under this Section may not be 

enlarged, heightened, altered in shape, or moved.  The copy on such signs 
may be altered, but only within the existing area of the sign. 
 

(JI) DANGEROUS AND ABANDONED SIGNS; VIOLATIONS. 
 

(1) All signs shall be removed by the owner or lessee of the premises upon which 
the sign is located when a business which it advertises has not been 
conducted for a period of twelve (12) months or when, in the judgment of the 
Building Inspector, such sign is so old, dilapidated or has become so out of 
repair as to be dangerous or unsafe, whichever occurs first.  If the owner or 
lessee fails to remove it, the Building Inspector may remove the sign at the 
cost of the owner, following adequate written notice.  The owner may appeal 
the Building Inspector’s decision to the Board of Appeals. 

 
(2) Alterations.  Any sign that was erected before the adoption of this sign 

ordinanceArticle shall not be enlarged, rebuilt or relocated without conforming 
to all of the requirements of this Section. 

 
(3) Violations.  All signs constructed or maintained in violation of any of the 

provisions of this sign ordinanceArticle are hereby declared public nuisances 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

21 
 

within the meaning of this Code of Ordinances.  In addition to the above 
penalty provisions for violation of this Chapter, the Building Inspector may 
bring an action to abate the nuisance in the manner set forth in the Wisconsin 
State Statutes. 

 
  



Draft: August 16, 2016 

22 
 

22.06 SPECIFIC STANDARDS.  
 
(A) SPECIFIC STANDARDS. 
 

(1) In order to insure that the intent of this Ordinance is met and that certain uses 
are developed in a manner which is consistent with the purpose of this 
Chapter, the following Specific Standards are adopted for the uses listed in 
this section. 

 
(2) Whenever any use listed in this section is requested to be established as a 

specified use or a conditional use, the applicant requesting such use shall 
provide to the Zoning Administrator information adequate to show that the 
specific standards for that use are met, such as a site plan and/or other 
documentation.  These materials shall be in addition to any required 
documentation as specified in Section 22.13. 

 
(B) CUSTOMARY HOME OCCUPATIONS.  Home occupations are an accessory use 

in all residential districts and are subject to the requirements of the district in which 
the use is located.  In addition, the following regulations apply to all home 
occupations: 

 
(1) Home occupations shall be conducted only within the enclosed area of the 

dwelling unit or the garage.  No more than 25 percent of a principal structure 
or 75 percent of an accessory structure may be dedicated to a home 
occupation.  No accessory building may be built, altered, or used primarily for 
use in the home occupation. 

 
(2) There shall be no exterior alterations which change the character of the 

dwelling and there shall be no exterior evidence of a home occupation other 
than a sign as permitted below. 

 
(3) No storage or display of materials, goods, supplies, or equipment related to 

the operation of a home occupation shall be visible outside any structure 
located on the premises. 

 
(4) No stock in trade may be displayed or sold at retail on the premises. 

 
(5) No use shall create smoke, odor, glare, noise, dust, vibration, fire hazard, 

electrical interference, excess trash, or any nuisance not normally associated 
with the usual residential use in the district. 

 
(6) Only one wall sign of one four (14) square feet or less shall be permitted.  No 

sign identifying a home occupation shall be illuminated.  Any such sign shall 
be affixed to the principal structure in the same plane as the wall to which it is 
attached.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may be approved as a 
Conditional Use. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

23 
 

 
(7) A home occupation shall be clearly incidental to the principal residential use 

of the building. 
 

(8) Stock in trade, ;including that which is provided on the premises, shall not 
require receipt or delivery of merchandise, goods, and supplies other than by 
United States Mail, similar parcel delivery service, or by private vehicle similar 
in size and weight to the U.S. Mail/other parcel delivery service vehicles. 

 
(9) No other person other than members of the family occupying the residence 

may be employed in the home occupation. 
 
(C) INTENSIVE HOME OCCUPATIONS.  Intensive home occupations are a conditional 

use in all residential districts.  They are subject to all of the requirements for a Home 
Occupation, except as modified by and in addition to the requirements below: 

 
(1) Only one other person other than members of the family occupying the 

residence may be employed in the home occupation. 
 

(2) Only one wall sign of four (4) square feet or less shall be permitted.  No sign 
identifying a home occupation shall be illuminated.  Any such sign shall be 
affixed to the principal structure in the same plane as the wall to which it is 
attached.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may be approved as part 
of the Conditional Use approval. 

 
(3) Parking shall be restricted to existing parking spaces on the premises and on-

street parking spaces adjacent to the premises. 
 

(4) The applicant shall state on the application the expected number of vehicles 
per day accessing the property related to the business.  The Plan Commission 
and Common Council may limit the number of vehicles per day accessing the 
business. 

 
(5) The applicant shall state on the application the hours of operation of the 

business.  The Plan Commission and Common Council may limit the hours of 
operation in order to maintain the residential character of the neighborhood. 

 
(6) Retail sales of goods created or fabricated by the family residing on the 

premises (other than produce grown on the property) is permitted only as an 
Intensive Home Occupation, subject to all other requirements of the 
Conditional Use Permit. 

 
(D) PROFESSIONAL OFFICES (R-3 DISTRICTS).  Professional offices are a 

conditional use in the R-3 residential district and are subject to the requirements of 
that district in which the use is located.  In addition the following regulations apply to 
all professional offices in the R-3 District. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

24 
 

 
(1) Not more than one-half of the overall floor area of the building, excluding 

porches, patios and garages may be occupied by the office.  The remaining 
floor space shall be used as for residential purposes and need not be the 
residence of the person maintaining the office. 

 
(2) No more than one separate and distinct business operation shall be allowed 

in any building in a residential district. 
 

(3) The number of employees permitted and parking requirements shall be 
determined by the Plan Commission, with approval of the Common Council. 

 
(4) No sign identifying a professional office in a residential zoning district shall be 

illuminated.  Only one non-illuminated wall sign of four (4) square feet or less 
shall be permitted.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may be 
approved as a part of the Conditional Use approval  . 

 
(F) BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS. 
 

(1) For an existing structure which is proposed to be converted to a bed and 
breakfast establishment, all dimensional requirements of the zoning district 
are waived. 

 
(2) Required off-street parking areas and access drives shall be hard surfaced 

and dust free. 
 

(3) Bed and Breakfast establishments shall conform to all state requirements. 
 

(4) Signs: 
 

(a) One wall sign shall be permitted, which shall not exceed four (4) square 
feet in area. 

 
(b) The sign shall be attached to the building in the same plane as the wall 

to which it is attached.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may 
be approved as a Conditional Use., unless the City Council, after 
recommendation by the Plan Commission, finds that a wall sign cannot 
adequately advertise the establishment.  In such a case, a single 
permanent freestanding sign, not exceeding four (4) square feet in 
area, is permitted with a maximum height of 10 feet. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

1 
 

22.11  SIGNS.  
 
(A) PERMIT REQUIRED.  No sign shall hereafter be located, erected, moved, 

reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted, or structurally altered except so as to 
comply with the provisions of this section.  It shall be unlawful for any person to locate, 
erect, construct, enlarge or structurally modify a sign or cause the same to be done 
within the City of Platteville without first obtaining a sign permit for each sign from the 
Building Inspector, unless specifically exempted by this Section.  All signs requiring 
review under the provisions of Chapter 27, Historic Preservation, shall meet the 
requirements of that Chapter in addition to the requirements of this section. 

 
(B) GENERAL REGULATIONS 
 

(1) Conflicts.  In the case of conflicting sign requirements and limitations, the more 
stringent shall apply. 

 
(2) Advertising.  Other than billboards, political signs and temporary signs as 

permitted by this Section, signs shall advertise only those locations, products, 
goods, or services available upon the same premises as the sign. 

 
(3) Installation.  All signs shall be properly secured, supported and braced.  Signs 

shall not be fastened to window frames.  Every sign and its framework, braces, 
anchors and other supports shall be constructed of such material and with 
such workmanship as to be safe and satisfactory to the Building Inspector.  

 
(4) Maintenance.  All signs, including supports and attachments, shall be kept in 

reasonable structural condition and shall be kept clean and well painted at all 
times. 

 
(5) Blanketing.  Blanketing of signs shall not be allowed. 

 
(6) Illumination.  When permitted, both indirect and directly illuminated signs shall 

concentrate light only upon the area of the sign.  Light sources shall be 
shielded as necessary to prevent glare upon the street or adjacent properties. 

 
(C) DEFINITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS.  The following definitions and sign 

requirements shall apply to all signs.  Refer to Section 22.11(G) for regulations 
specific to each zoning district, and to Section 22.11(H) for regulations specific to 
temporary signs. 

 
(1) Area of Sign.  The entire area within a single perimeter enclosing the extreme 

limits of a sign, not including any structural elements.  The area of a multiple-
faced or irregular-shaped sign shall be computed on the basis of the smallest 
area of the sign that can be enclosed by two contiguous rectangles.  Only one 
side of a double-faced sign shall be used in computing the area of a sign, 
provided that the information on both sides is the same. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

2 
 

   
(2) Awning.  A hood or cover that projects from the wall of a building, which can 

be retracted, folded or collapsed against the face of a supporting structure. 
 

(3) Banner Sign.  Any temporary sign of lightweight fabric, vinyl or similar material 
that is intended to promote a business, product or event.  National, state or 
municipal flags shall not be considered a banner sign.   

 
(4) Billboard.  A sign that advertises goods, products or facilities, or services not 

on the premises where the sign is located or is intended to direct persons to 
a different location from where the sign is located.  Also known as an off-
premise advertising sign. 

 
(5) Blanketing.  The unreasonable obstruction of view of a sign caused by the 

placement of another sign. 
 

(6) Building Frontage.  The horizontal width of a building where it is oriented 
towards the right-of-way.  On a corner lot, each face of the building facing a 
right-of-way is considered a separate building frontage. 

 
(7) Building Sign.  A sign attached to, painted on or made a part of a wall or a 

projection of a wall on a building, or erected upon or over the roof or parapet 
of any building.  For the purposes of this Ordinance, there are four types of 
building signs. 

 
(a) Awning/Canopy/Marquee Sign.  Any sign attached to or made part of 

an awning, canopy or marquee, including any sign hanging from 
underneath the awning, canopy or marquee.  Hanging signs may not 
be lower than 8 feet above a walkway or public sidewalk. 

 
(b) Wall Sign.  Any sign attached to, erected on or painted on the wall of a 

building or structure and projecting not more than twelve (12) inches 
from such wall. 

 
(c) Projecting Sign.  Any sign extending more than twelve (12) inches, but 

no more than five (5) feet from the face of a wall or building.  Projecting 
signs may not be lower than eight (8) feet above a walkway or public 
sidewalk. 

 
(d) Roof Sign.  Any sign erected upon or over the roof or parapet of any 

building.  The highest point of the sign may not be more than fifteen 
(15) feet above the roof surface or the coping of the building.  The 
combined height of the building and the sign shall not exceed the 
height requirement for the zoning district in which it is located. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

3 
 

(8) Canopy (or Marquee).  A shelter attached to or connected with a building to 
provide cover over a door, entrance, window or outdoor service area. 
 

(9) Construction/Development Sign.  Any temporary sign giving the name or 
names of contractors, architects, lending institutions, funding sources, 
responsible for construction on the site where the sign is placed, together with 
other pertinent information included theron. 

 
(10) Directly Illuminated Sign.  Any sign designed to give artificial light directly 

through a transparent or translucent material from a source of light originating 
within or upon such sign. 

 
(11) Directional Sign.  Any sign which provides instruction or direction and is 

located entirely on a property to which it pertains, or adjacent to a driveway 
serving the property, and does not exceed eight (8) square feet in area.  This 
includes, but is not limited to, such signs as those identifying entrances and 
exists, drive-through windows, restrooms, telephones, and parking areas. 

 
(12) Electronic Message Unit Sign.  Any sign on which the message may be 

changed by an electronic process, including such messages as copy, art, 
graphics, time, date, temperature, weather or information concerning civic and 
charitable events or the advertising of products or services available on the 
premises.  This also includes traveling or segmented message displays. 

 
(13) Flashing Elements.  Portions of any directly or indirectly illuminated sign 

(except for Electronic Message Unit signs) which contain artificial light which 
is not maintained stationary and constant in intensity and/or color at all times 
when in use.  Where signs with flashing elements are permitted, the intensity 
of any single bulb or other light-emitting source cannot exceed twenty-five (25) 
watts.  Bare reflecting-type bulbs of any kind are not allowed as flashing 
elements unless they are properly shaded so as not to interfere with 
surrounding properties.  No more than twenty-five (25) percent of the area of 
any sign may contain flashing elements. 

 
(14) Fraternity/Sorority Sign.  A sign on a fraternity or sorority house which is 

recognized by the University of Wisconsin-Platteville, which contains only the 
name, Greek letters, and/or recognized logo of the fraternity/sorority. 

 
(15) Freestanding Sign.  Any permanent sign which is supported by structures or 

supports in or upon the ground and independent of support from any building. 
 

(16) Height of Sign.  The distance measured from the established grade at the 
ground level of the sign to the top-most element of the sign structure. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

4 
 

(17) Indirectly Illuminated Sign.  A sign that is illuminated from a source outside of 
the actual sign, which is directed at the sign and is installed for the purpose of 
sign illumination. 

 
(18) Institutional Sign.  A sign for a public, educational, charitable or religious 

institution, which may include areas for movable copy. 
 

(19) Movable Board Sign.  A two-sided sign designed to be temporarily placed on 
the sidewalk outside of a business that advertises goods or services available 
therein.  A movable board sign located on a public sidewalk shall only be 
displayed during the hours the business is open, may not be fixed in a 
permanent position, shall not be located in front of another business, and may 
not be illuminated. The City accepts no liability for any movable board sign 
placed on a public right-of-way.   

 
(20) Multi-Family Complex Sign.  A freestanding sign that displays the name of a 

multi-family apartment complex and related information (such as the phone 
number, vacancy status, etc.). 

 
(21) Neighborhood Identification Sign.  A sign displaying the name of a particular 

neighborhood or subdivision located at the entrance to said area.  A 
Neighborhood Identification sign may be illuminated and may be combined 
with a brick, masonry or stone wall and landscaping. 

 
(22) Nonconforming Sign.  Any sign which does not conform to the regulations of 

this Section. 
 

(23) Occupant Frontage.  In a multi-tenant building, the horizontal width of the 
business occupancy parallel to the front of the building or to its main entrance.  
In the case of an end unit with a wall face that faces a street right-of-way, each 
wall face may be considered a separate occupancy frontage. 

 
(24) Personal Greeting/Congratulatory Sign.  A temporary sign with a non-

advertising message providing a greeting or message to announce, 
congratulate or welcome.   

 
(25) Public Event Sign.  A temporary sign displaying information of interest to the 

general community regarding scheduled public events, public activities, 
fundraising events, religious or educational events or activities, or events of a 
philanthropic entity.  Such signs shall not include product advertisement or an 
activity for private profit.   

 
(26) Political Message Sign.  A temporary sign supporting a candidate for office or 

urging action on any other matter on the ballot of a primary, general or special 
election or urging that a matter be placed on a ballot of a primary, general or 
special election. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

5 
 

 
(27) Portable Sign.  A temporary sign mounted to a rigid structure which is not 

permanently affixed to the ground and which can be moved from one location 
to another, not including a moveable board sign. 

 
(28) Real Estate Sign.  Any sign that is used to offer for sale, lease or rent the 

property upon which the sign is placed. 
 

(29) Sign.  A sign shall include anything using words, letters, numbers, symbols or 
graphics that promotes, calls attention or invites patronage (or anything similar 
to the aforementioned) to a business, location, individual, event or product. 

 
(30) Sign Setback.  The distance from any property line to the plane formed by the 

nearest edge or element of the sign structure, extended to the ground. 
 

(31) Street Frontage.  The distance measured along the lot line adjacent to a public 
right-of-way.  Each separate street adjacent to a lot is considered a separate 
street frontage.  When multiple signs are allowed, each sign shall use the 
frontage along which it is intended to be viewed as its street frontage for the 
purposes of determining sign area. 

 
(32) Temporary Sign.  Any sign intended to be displayed for a limited period of 

time, including banners, movable board signs, portable signs, ground signs, 
flags, pennants, inflatable figures and balloons.  The signs may be used for 
advertising a product, business or publicizing a special event.  Seasonal or 
holiday lights, wreaths, trees, or other common holiday decorations are not 
considered temporary signs.  Temporary signs shall be erected so as not be 
loosened as a result of wind or weather and shall be properly maintained. 

 
(33) Warning Sign.  Signs which are intended to warn of regulations, restrictions 

or safety hazards affecting the property, e.g. “No trespassing”, “beware of 
dog”, “no parking”, etc. 

 
(34) Window Sign.  Any sign that is visible to the public located completely within 

a window, or attached to or painted upon the surface of a window of a building. 
 
(D) PERMIT-EXEMPT SIGNS.  The following signs are exempt from the requirement 

that a permit be obtained and, unless otherwise stated, are permitted in all zoning 
districts, (unless within the Historic Preservation District, in which case all applicable 
historic preservation provisions shall apply): 

 
 

(1) Commemorative plaques of recognized historic agencies, commemorative 
signs recognizing a historic event, site or person, or identification emblems 
of historical agencies, not exceeding eighteen (18) square feet. 
 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

6 
 

(2) Directional signs, in the Business and Manufacturing districts. 
 

(3) Emblems or insignia of any nation or political subdivision, or non-profit 
organization, provided such signs shall not be illuminated nor exceed two (2) 
square feet in area. 

 
(4) Government or official signs for the control of traffic and other regulatory 

purposes, danger signs, railroad crossing signs and signs of public utilities 
indicating danger, wayfinding signs, and aids to service or safety which are 
erected by or on the order of a public officer in the performance of his duty.  
Such signs shall be subject to approval by the Department of Public Works 
and the Building Inspector. 

 
(5) Home-based professional office signs, home occupation identification signs, 

Bed and Breakfast establishment signs, and professional office signs (in the 
R-3 District) when located on the same premises as an approved Conditional 
Use.  Such signs may not be illuminated and are limited to four (4) square feet 
in area.  See Section 22.06 for further regulations. 

 
(6) House numbers and name plates not exceeding two (2) square feet in area 

for each residential, institutional, business or manufacturing building. 
 

(7) Interior signs.  Signs located within the interior of any building or structure 
which are not visible from the public right-of-way.  This does not, however, 
exempt such signs from the structural, electrical or material specifications of 
this or any other applicable code, statute, or ordinance. 

 
(8) Memorial signs or tablets, names of buildings and date of erection, inscriptions 

or emblems, which are cut into masonry surface or inlaid so as to be part of a 
building or when constructed of bronze or other non combustible material not 
more than 4 square feet in area and affixed flat against the structure. 

 
(9) Municipal signs.  Signs erected by the City of Platteville upon municipal 

property, buildings, parks or public recreational facilities. 
 
 

(10) Official notices posted by public officers or employees in the performance of 
their duties. 

 
 

(11) Religious symbols or identification emblems of religious orders. 
 

(12) University Signs.  Signs erected by the University of Wisconsin-Platteville on 
University-owned property. 
 

(13) Warning Signs. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

7 
 

 
(14) Window signs.  Signs attached or affixed to the surface of a window; however, 

window signs located within a designated Historic District must first be 
approved by the Historic Preservation Commission in accordance with the 
requirements of Chapter 27. 

 

(15) Temporary Signs.  Some temporary signs are permit exempt, as described in 
Section (H).   

 
(E) PROHIBITED SIGNS.  The following signs are prohibited: 
 

(1) Signs containing any obscene, indecent, or immoral matter. 
 

(2) Signs which interfere with the safe conduct of travel on sidewalks, streets and 
highways.  Advertising signs that are similar in appearance to traffic control 
signs and devices are prohibited. 

 
(3) Any other sign that creates an unreasonable hazard or threat to public safety 

is hereby prohibited. 
 

(4) Signs (other than billboards) which advertise a product or business which is 
no longer available or carried on upon the premises on which the sign is 
located.  Such signs shall be removed within twelve (12) months of the 
cessation of such sales or business. 

 
(F) APPLICATION FOR A SIGN PERMIT 
 

(1) Application for a sign permit shall be made in writing upon a form furnished by 
the Building Inspector.  With such application there shall be submitted plans 
showing: 

 
(a) Location or position of the sign structure on the lot or building on which 

it shall be attached or erected, and 
 
(b) Drawings and specifications showing area, height, location and 

setback of the sign, method of construction, and attachment to the 
building or other structure, or anchoring in the ground. 

 
(c) Any other information deemed necessary by the Building Inspector to 

meet the requirements of this Section. 
 

(2) Permit fees shall be in the amount as established from time to time by the 
Common Council. 

 
(G) ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS FOR PERMANENT SIGNS 
 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

8 
 

(1) Residential Districts: 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the R-1, R-2, and R-3 districts.  Allowable temporary signs are 
described in Section (H). 

 
1. Institutional Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty (30) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
2. Multi-Family Complex Signs, in the R-3 District only. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty- Five (35) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
3. Neighborhood Identification Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Twenty (20) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
4. Fraternity/Sorority Signs, where such uses are permitted. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Twenty (20) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
5. Home Occupation Signs, where such uses are permitted, 

subject to the standards in 22.06 or as approved as part of CUP. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Four (4) square feet. 
(b) Illumination:  The above permitted signs may be illuminated, except for 

the Home Occupation Signs.  Flashing elements are prohibited. 
 

(2) I-1 and C-1 Districts. 
 

(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 
in the I-1 Institutional and C-1 Conservation districts for all Specified 
and approved Conditional Uses.  Allowable temporary signs are 
described in Section (H). 

 
1. Building and Freestanding Signs. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

9 
 

a. Building Sign Maximum Area:  One (1) square foot per 
each linear foot of building frontage. 

b. Freestanding Sign Maximum Area:  One square foot per 
each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
150  square feet.  Maximum Height:  Ten (10) feet.  
Minimum Setback:  Five (5) feet. 

 
 
 

(b) Illumination.  All permitted signs may be illuminated.  Flashing 
elements are prohibited. 

 
(3) B-1 District: 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the B-1 Neighborhood Business District, subject to the requirements 
herein.  Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H). 

 
1. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  One (1) square foot per 

each linear foot of building frontage or, in the case of a 
multi-tenant building, one square foot per each linear 
foot of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building or Occupancy:  Multiple 
building signs are permitted, but the total area of all signs 
may not exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
2. Freestanding Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  One (1) square foot per each linear foot 

of street frontage, up to a maximum of seventy-five (75) 
square feet. 

b. Maximum Height:  Twenty-five (25) feet. 
c. Maximum per Lot:  One (1). 

 
3. Institutional Signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Thirty (30) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height:  Ten (10) feet for freestanding signs. 
c. Minimum Setback:  Five (5) feet. 

 
 
 

(b) Illumination.  All permitted signs may be illuminated.  Flashing 
elements are prohibited. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

10 
 

 
(4) CBT District. 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the CBT Central Business Transition District, subject to the 
requirements herein.  Allowable temporary signs are described in 
Section (H). 

 
1. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  One and a half (1.5) square 

feet per each linear foot of building frontage or, in the 
case of a multi-tenant building, one and a half square 
feet per each linear foot of occupant frontage. 

 
b. Maximum Number per Building or Occupancy:  Multiple 

building signs are permitted, but the total area of all signs 
may not exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
2. Institutional signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty (30) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

3. Freestanding Signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area:  One and a half (1.5) square feet per 
each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
100 square feet. 

b. Maximum per Lot: One (1). 
c. Maximum Height: Twenty Five (25) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
 

4. Multi-Family Complex Signs, and only when allowed as a 
conditional use. 

 
a. Maximum Area: Thirty-five (35) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
5. Fraternity/Sorority Signs, only when allowed as a conditional 

use. 
 

a. Maximum Area: Twenty (20) square feet. 
b. Maximum Height: Ten (10) feet. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

11 
 

    c. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 
 

(b) Illumination.  All signs in the CBT districts may be illuminated .  Flashing 
elements (except for Electronic Message Unit signs) are prohibited. 

 
(5) B-2 District. 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the B-2 Central Business District, subject to the requirements herein.  
Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H). 

 
1. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  Two (2) square feet per 

each linear foot of building frontage or, in the case of a 
multi-tenant building, two square feet per each linear foot 
of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building or Occupancy:  Multiple 
building signs are permitted, but the total area of all signs 
may not exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
2. Electronic Message Unit Signs: 

 
a. The maximum area dedicated to an electronic message 

unit shall be 50 percent of the sign area or 35 square feet 
(whichever is larger) per sign face and shall be inclusive 
of the maximum area permitted for the sign structure. 

 
3. Freestanding Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Two (2) square feet for each linear foot 

of street frontage, up to a maximum of 150 square feet. 
b. Maximum per Lot:  One (1) per street frontage; however, 

for lots where a street frontage is 200 feet or more, one 
(1) additional sign is permitted along that frontage; 
however, the aggregate area of all signs may not exceed 
the maximum area noted above. 

c. Maximum Height: Twenty-five (25) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
 

(b) Illumination.  All signs in the B-2 district may be illuminated .  Flashing 
elements (except for Electronic Message Unit signs) are prohibited. 

 
(6) B-3 District. 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

12 
 

(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 
in the B-3 Highway Business District, subject to the requirements 
herein.  Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H). 

 
1. Billboard signs. 

 
a. Maximum Area: 400 square feet per side. 
b. Maximum Height: 30 feet. 
c. Minimum Setback: 15 feet. 
d. Maximum Number per Lot:  For highways with speed 

limit <65 mph, one (1) per lot with a minimum spacing 
between signs of 500 feet of highway frontage.  For 
highways with speed limit 65 mph, one (1) per lot with a 
minimum spacing between signs of 1500 feet of highway 
frontage. 

e. Location:  Billboards are only allowed on lots that have 
frontage on a State or Federal highway, or a highway 
business route.  No billboards may be installed adjacent 
to or within 300 feet of an interchange, intersection at 
grade, off-ramp, safety rest area, or wayside.  Said 300 
feet shall be measured along the highway from the 
beginning or ending of the pavement widening at the exit 
from or entrance to the main-traveled way of the primary 
highway. 

f. Residential Setback:  Billboards shall be setback a 
minimum of four hundred feet (400’) from a property 
zoned residential, or from a structure used as a 
residence which is located on lands not zoned 
residential. 

 
2. Building signs: 

 
a. Maximum Cumulative Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square 

feet per each linear foot of building frontage or, in the 
case of a multi-tenant building, two and a half (2.5) 
square feet per each linear foot of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building:  Multiple building signs 
are permitted, but the total area of all signs may not 
exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
3. Electronic Message Unit signs. 

 
a. The maximum area dedicated to an electronic message 

unit shall be 50 percent of the sign area or 35 square feet 
(whichever is larger) per sign face and shall be inclusive 
of the maximum area permitted for the sign structure. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

13 
 

 
4. Institutional signs.  Shall meet the applicable requirements for 

Building Signs and/or Freestanding Signs in this Section. 
 

5. Freestanding signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square feet for 
each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
200 square feet. 

b. Number Per Lot:  One (1) per street frontage; however, 
for lots where a street frontage is 200 feet or more, one 
(1) additional sign is permitted along that frontage; 
however, the aggregate area of all signs may not exceed 
the maximum area noted above. 

c. Maximum Height: Thirty (30) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
 
 

(b) Illumination.  All signs in the B-3 District may be illuminated .  Flashing 
elements are permitted; however, flashing elements that may create a 
hazard as determined by the Zoning Administrator are prohibited. 

 
(7) Manufacturing Districts. 

 
(a) Types Allowed.  The following types of permanent signs are permitted 

in the M-1, M-2, and M-4 districts, subject to the requirements herein.  
Allowable temporary signs are described in Section (H). 

 
1. Billboard signs; however, billboard signs are not permitted in the 

M-4 District. 
 
    a. Maximum Area: 400 square feet per side. 
    b. Maximum Height: 30 feet. 
    c. Minimum Setback: 15 feet. 

d. Maximum Number per Lot:  For highways with speed 
limit <65 mph, one (1) per lot with a minimum spacing 
between signs of 500 feet of highway frontage.  For 
highways with speed limit 65 mph, one (1) per lot with a 
minimum spacing between signs of 1500 feet of highway 
frontage. 

e. Location:  Billboards are only allowed on lots that have 
frontage on a State or Federal highway, or a highway 
business route.  No billboards may be installed adjacent 
to or within 300 feet of an interchange, intersection at 
grade, off-ramp, safety rest area, or wayside.  Said 300 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

14 
 

feet shall be measured along the highway from the 
beginning or ending of the pavement widening at the exit 
from or entrance to the main-traveled way of the primary 
highway. 

f. Residential Setback:  Billboards shall be setback a 
minimum of four hundred feet (400’) from a property 
zoned residential, or from a structure used as a 
residence which is located on lands not zoned 
residential. 

 
2. Building Signs: 

 
a. Maximum Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square feet per 

each linear foot of building frontage or, in the case of a 
multi-tenant building, two and a half (2.5) square feet per 
each linear foot of occupant frontage. 

b. Maximum Number per Building:  Multiple building signs 
are permitted, but the total area of all signs may not 
exceed the maximum area stated above. 

 
3. Electronic Message Unit Signs. 

 
a. The maximum area dedicated to an electronic message 

unit shall be 50 percent of the sign area or 35 square feet 
(whichever is larger) per sign face and shall be inclusive 
of the maximum area permitted for the sign structure. 

 
2. Institutional Signs.  Shall meet the applicable requirements for 

Building Signs and/or Freestanding Signs in this Section. 
 

3. Freestanding Signs. 
 

a. Maximum Area:  Two and a half (2.5) square feet for 
each linear foot of street frontage, up to a maximum of 
200 square feet. 

b. Number Per Lot:  One (1) per street frontage; however, 
for lots where a street frontage is 250 feet or more, one 
(1) additional pole sign is permitted along that frontage; 
however, the aggregate area of all signs may not exceed 
the maximum area noted above. 

c. Maximum Height: Thirty (30) feet. 
d. Minimum Setback: Five (5) feet. 

 
 

 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

15 
 

(b) Illumination.  All signs in the manufacturing districts may be illuminated.  
Flashing elements are permitted. 

 
(c) M-s Districts:  Standards for signs in the M-3 Industrial Park District 

regarding sign area, height, setback, number and illumination limitations 
shall directly relate to the individual zoning district for which the use is listed 
as a specified use. 

 
(H) REGULATIONS FOR TEMPORARY SIGNS 
 

(1) Residential Districts – Permit Exempt.  Temporary signs are allowed in the R-
1, R-2 and R-3 districts without a permit, subject to the following requirements: 
 
a) Except for signs approved by the Common Council, all signs shall be 

located entirely within the property boundaries. 
 

b) Signs shall not obstruct the visibility from any intersection or driveway. 
 

c) Signs shall be adequately supported and anchored.  Any sign that is 
frayed, damaged, dirty, worn, or that becomes loosened from its supports 
so that the sign is sagging, shall become an illegal sign and may be treated 
in the same manner as any other illegal sign under the provisions of this 
Chapter.  

 

d) Signs shall not be lit and shall not include any electrical, mechanical, video 
or audio device. 

 

e) Except for signs promoting a public event, charitable event or educational 
activity taking place at another location, signs must be promoting or 
otherwise related to a use that is permitted on the property where the sign 
is located. 

 

f) Signs related to a specific event or activity shall not be installed more than 
five (5) days prior to the start of such event or activity, and shall be 
removed within two (2) days following the event or activity.   

 

g) Total sign area shall not exceed sixteen (16) sq. ft. without a permit, and 
no individual sign shall exceed nine (9) sq. ft. in area. 

 
(2) Residential Districts – Permit Required.  Additional signs beyond that 

identified in Section (H)(1) above shall require a sign permit.   
 
(a) A permit is required for each twelve (12) sq. ft. of additional sign area.   
(b) The additional permitted signs shall be allowed to remain for a maximum 

of fourteen (14) days per issued permit, and the property shall be limited 
to a maximum of four (4) additional permits per year. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

16 
 

 
(c) The total area of temporary signs on any property is limited to a maximum 

of 0.5 sq. ft. of sign area for each foot of lot frontage. 
(3) Non-Residential Districts – Permit Exempt.  Temporary signs are allowed in 

the non-residential districts without a permit, subject to the following 
requirements: 
 
(a) Except for signs approved by the Common Council, and movable board 

signs in the B-2 District, all signs shall be located entirely within the 
property boundaries. 
 

(b) Signs shall not obstruct the visibility from any intersection or driveway, or 
the movement of pedestrians on a public sidewalk. 

 
(c) Signs shall be adequately supported and anchored.  Any sign that is 

frayed, damaged, dirty, worn, or that becomes loosened from its supports 
so that the sign is sagging, shall become an illegal sign and may be treated 
in the same manner as any other illegal sign under the provisions of this 
Chapter.  

 

(d) Signs shall not be lit and shall not include any electrical, mechanical, video 
or audio device. 

 

(e) Except for signs promoting a public event, charitable event or educational 
activity taking place at another location, signs must be promoting or 
otherwise related to a use that is permitted on the property where the sign 
is located. 

 

(f) Signs related to a specific event or activity shall not be installed more than 
five (5) days prior to the start of such event or activity, and shall be 
removed within two (2) days following the event or activity.   

 

(g) Total sign area shall not exceed sixteen (16) sq. ft. without a permit.   
 

(4) Non-Residential Districts – Permit Required.  Temporary signs in addition to 
the signs described in Section (H)(3) above are subject to a sign permit and 
the following requirements:  
 
(a) A permit is required for each sixteen (16) square feet of additional 

temporary sign area.  Each sign shall be allowed for a maximum of 
fourteen (14) days, and the business or entity shall be limited to a 
maximum of four (4) additional permits per year.   

 
(b) Special Event Signs:  Unlimited temporary signs are allowed with a permit 

for grand openings, sales, or other special events.  Signs for each event 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

17 
 

shall be allowed  for a maximum of thirty (30) days, and the property shall 
be limited to a maximum of two (2) events per year.   

 
(c) Except for Special Event Signs, the total amount of temporary signs 

allowed on a property is limited to a maximum of one and one-half (1.5) 
square feet of sign area for each linear feet of building frontage, or 
occupant building frontage for multi-tenant buildings.   

 
(I) NON-CONFORMING SIGNS. 
 

(1) All signs, except temporary signs, that are in existence as of the adoption of 
this ordinance and that do not conform to this Section shall be considered as 
non-conforming and are subject to the requirements of Section 22.12. 

 
(2) Signs that are legal but non-conforming under this Section may not be 
enlarged, heightened, altered in shape, or moved.  The copy on such signs 
may be altered, but only within the existing area of the sign. 

(J) DANGEROUS AND ABANDONED SIGNS; VIOLATIONS. 
 

(1) All signs shall be removed by the owner or lessee of the premises upon which 
the sign is located when a business which it advertises has not been 
conducted for a period of twelve (12) months or when, in the judgment of the 
Building Inspector, such sign is so old, dilapidated or has become so out of 
repair as to be dangerous or unsafe, whichever occurs first.  If the owner or 
lessee fails to remove it, the Building Inspector may remove the sign at the 
cost of the owner, following adequate written notice.  The owner may appeal 
the Building Inspector’s decision to the Board of Appeals. 

 
(2) Alterations.  Any sign that was erected before the adoption of this sign 

ordinanceshall not be enlarged, rebuilt or relocated without conforming to all 
of the requirements of this Section. 

 
(3) Violations.  All signs constructed or maintained in violation of any of the 

provisions of this sign ordinance are hereby declared public nuisances within 
the meaning of this Code of Ordinances.  In addition to the above penalty 
provisions for violation of this Chapter, the Building Inspector may bring an 
action to abate the nuisance in the manner set forth in the Wisconsin State 
Statutes. 

 
  



Draft: August 16, 2016 

18 
 

22.06 SPECIFIC STANDARDS.  
 
(A) SPECIFIC STANDARDS. 
 

(1) In order to insure that the intent of this Ordinance is met and that certain uses 
are developed in a manner which is consistent with the purpose of this 
Chapter, the following Specific Standards are adopted for the uses listed in 
this section. 

 
(2) Whenever any use listed in this section is requested to be established as a 

specified use or a conditional use, the applicant requesting such use shall 
provide to the Zoning Administrator information adequate to show that the 
specific standards for that use are met, such as a site plan and/or other 
documentation.  These materials shall be in addition to any required 
documentation as specified in Section 22.13. 

 
(B) CUSTOMARY HOME OCCUPATIONS.  Home occupations are an accessory use 

in all residential districts and are subject to the requirements of the district in which 
the use is located.  In addition, the following regulations apply to all home 
occupations: 

 
(1) Home occupations shall be conducted only within the enclosed area of the 

dwelling unit or the garage.  No more than 25 percent of a principal structure 
or 75 percent of an accessory structure may be dedicated to a home 
occupation.  No accessory building may be built, altered, or used primarily for 
use in the home occupation. 

 
(2) There shall be no exterior alterations which change the character of the 

dwelling and there shall be no exterior evidence of a home occupation other 
than a sign as permitted below. 

 
(3) No storage or display of materials, goods, supplies, or equipment related to 

the operation of a home occupation shall be visible outside any structure 
located on the premises. 

 
(4) No stock in trade may be displayed or sold at retail on the premises. 

 
(5) No use shall create smoke, odor, glare, noise, dust, vibration, fire hazard, 

electrical interference, excess trash, or any nuisance not normally associated 
with the usual residential use in the district. 

 
(6) Only one wall sign of four (4) square feet or less shall be permitted.  No sign 

identifying a home occupation shall be illuminated.  Any such sign shall be 
affixed to the principal structure in the same plane as the wall to which it is 
attached.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may be approved as a 
Conditional Use. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

19 
 

 
(7) A home occupation shall be clearly incidental to the principal residential use 

of the building. 
 

(8) Stock in trade, ;including that which is provided on the premises, shall not 
require receipt or delivery of merchandise, goods, and supplies other than by 
United States Mail, similar parcel delivery service, or by private vehicle similar 
in size and weight to the U.S. Mail/other parcel delivery service vehicles. 

 
(9) No other person other than members of the family occupying the residence 

may be employed in the home occupation. 
 
(C) INTENSIVE HOME OCCUPATIONS.  Intensive home occupations are a conditional 

use in all residential districts.  They are subject to all of the requirements for a Home 
Occupation, except as modified by and in addition to the requirements below: 

 
(1) Only one other person other than members of the family occupying the 

residence may be employed in the home occupation. 
 

(2) Only one wall sign of four (4) square feet or less shall be permitted.  No sign 
identifying a home occupation shall be illuminated.  Any such sign shall be 
affixed to the principal structure in the same plane as the wall to which it is 
attached.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may be approved as part 
of the Conditional Use approval. 

 
(3) Parking shall be restricted to existing parking spaces on the premises and on-

street parking spaces adjacent to the premises. 
 

(4) The applicant shall state on the application the expected number of vehicles 
per day accessing the property related to the business.  The Plan Commission 
and Common Council may limit the number of vehicles per day accessing the 
business. 

 
(5) The applicant shall state on the application the hours of operation of the 

business.  The Plan Commission and Common Council may limit the hours of 
operation in order to maintain the residential character of the neighborhood. 

 
(6) Retail sales of goods created or fabricated by the family residing on the 

premises (other than produce grown on the property) is permitted only as an 
Intensive Home Occupation, subject to all other requirements of the 
Conditional Use Permit. 

 
(D) PROFESSIONAL OFFICES (R-3 DISTRICTS).  Professional offices are a 

conditional use in the R-3 residential district and are subject to the requirements of 
that district in which the use is located.  In addition the following regulations apply to 
all professional offices in the R-3 District. 



Draft: August 16, 2016 

20 
 

 
(1) Not more than one-half of the overall floor area of the building, excluding 

porches, patios and garages may be occupied by the office.  The remaining 
floor space shall be used as for residential purposes and need not be the 
residence of the person maintaining the office. 

 
(2) No more than one separate and distinct business operation shall be allowed 

in any building in a residential district. 
 

(3) The number of employees permitted and parking requirements shall be 
determined by the Plan Commission, with approval of the Common Council. 

 
(4) No sign identifying a professional office in a residential zoning district shall be 

illuminated.  Only one non-illuminated wall sign of four (4) square feet or less 
shall be permitted.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may be 
approved as a part of the Conditional Use approval  . 

 
(F) BED AND BREAKFAST ESTABLISHMENTS. 
 

(1) For an existing structure which is proposed to be converted to a bed and 
breakfast establishment, all dimensional requirements of the zoning district 
are waived. 

 
(2) Required off-street parking areas and access drives shall be hard surfaced 

and dust free. 
 

(3) Bed and Breakfast establishments shall conform to all state requirements. 
 

(4) Signs: 
 

(a) One wall sign shall be permitted, which shall not exceed four (4) square 
feet in area. 

 
(b) The sign shall be attached to the building in the same plane as the wall 

to which it is attached.  A larger building sign or freestanding sign may 
be approved as a Conditional Use. 

 



  Draft: August 2, 2016 

SIGN PERMIT FEES 
 

Existing: 
 
Projects $5,000 and under   $50 
Projects over $5,000 and under $10,000  $100 
Projects $10,000 and over   $150 
 
 
 

Proposed: 
 
Permanent Signage 
Projects $5,000 and under   $50 
Projects over $5,000 and under $10,000  $100 
Projects $10,000 and over   $150 
 
Temporary Signage 
Residential     $10  
Additional Business/Product Advertising  $10  
Special Event     $25  













PLATTEVILLE COMMON COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 
AUGUST 9, 2016 

 
The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Platteville was called to order by President 
Nickels at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:  Tom Nall, Eileen Nickels, Barbara Daus, Amy Seeboth-Wilson, Ken Kilian, and Don Francis.  
Excused:  Katherine Burk. 
 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION 

A. Villas at Pool Park Apartment Building Project Update – Brian Fritz.  Brian Fritz, 600 Pyrite 
Rd and Developer/Owner of the Villas at the Pool Park Apartment Building project gave an 
updated time line on this project.  The project should be ready for tenants within the next 60 
days if not sooner.  All units will have granite counter tops and that is what is holding the 
project up.  There are 34 units in all and they will consist of a mix of 1 to 4 bedroom units.  
They will allow for mixed income with a range from low income to market rate units.  They 
started taking applications 2-3 weeks ago, and the applications have come from all over, but 
most of the applications have come from the Platteville area.  They will consider all the 
applications, and all prospective tenants will undergo a complete record check for the safety 
of all tenants.  No leases have been written yet.  The leases will start at one year in length and 
then go month by month thereafter.  There will be a one-month security deposit.  They will 
also hold more than one Open House and there will be a ribbon cutting event. 

B. UW-Platteville Welcome Weekend – David Nevins.  David Nevins, Director of Campus 
Activities explained this event will take place Saturday, September 3, 2016, on Campus.  The 
University is expecting approximately 1,600 new freshman students.  Move in for the 
students will be between approximately 8:00 am and 2:00 pm.  Mr. Nevins suggests citizens 
avoid this area during this time as traffic will be heavy.  The University is planning a 
scavenger hunt, ball drop of 1,700 lighted super balls, Lip Sync contest, the Oscar Meyer 
Wienermobile will be present, and there will be music by Mike Posner and Grace.  The 
festival will be loud, but should be all over and done by 10:30pm.  A complete schedule of 
activities is available on the UW web site.  

 
CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion by Daus, second by Seeboth-Wilson to approve the consent calendar as follows:  Council Minutes 
for the 07/26/16 Special and Regular meeting; Payment of Bills in the amount of $776,343.04; July, 2016 
Financial Report; Appointments to Boards & Commissions of which there were none at this time; One-
year Operator License to Thalia P Leair, Corrine E Stower, and Addison K Williams; Two-Year Operator 
License to Ian B Duff, Benjamin M Pollock, Carrie A Simmons, Adam J Teal, Christopher L Tipton, 
Tyler J Tollefson, and Sylvia L Ware; One-Year Taxi Driver License to Dennis Lee Jones; Temporary 
Class “B” License to Sell Fermented Malt Beverages to the Platteville Jaycees at Legion Field for Dairy 
Days from 3 PM on September 9, 2016 to Midnight on September 11, 2016; Parade Permit for 
Homecoming Parade on October 15, 2016 and for the Platteville Dairy Days Committee on September 
10, 2016; and Petition for Grant County Highway Construction aids to help defray the street construction 
costs.  Motion carried 6-0 on roll call vote.   
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS AND PETITIONS 
Kyle McWilliams, 440 W Pine Street, spoke on a future event the University would like to hold called 
Car Owners against Domestic Abuse and Sexual Assault show.  This event would be held on May 16, 
2017.  It would involve approximately 250 to 500 car enthusiasts, local vendors, concession stand, close 
section of Hickory St, admission of $10 to $20 for participants, no charge for spectators, and proceeds 



would benefit Blue Safety Lights on campus and Family Advocates.  He is still in negotiations with the 
University and other interested parties for this event. 
 
Rich Christensen, 10 S 3rd St, commented on the City newsletter.  He felt the article on the new transit 
system was misleading as far as the cost of the vehicles themselves; no information available on the 
number of riders; if the system is expanded, how much more is it going to cost the taxpayers; and his 
observation is that many times the shuttle buses are empty.  His questions to the Common Council 
concerning the shuttle service have remained unanswered. 
 
REPORTS 

A. Board/Commission/Committee Minutes (Council Representative) 
1. Plan Commission (Nickels, Nall) 06/06/16 & 07/11/16.  Temporary Sign Ordinance 

information was discussed. 
B. Other Reports – Other reports were submitted by the City Attorney for July, Water and Sewer 

Financial Report for July, Airport Financial Report for July, and the Department Progress 
Reports.  Alderperson Kilian would also like the minutes of the Downtown Task Force in 
their packet. 

C.  
ACTION ITEMS 

A. Resolution 16-16 Application for Exemption from the Levy of any County Library Tax 
(07/26/16).  Motion by Daus, second by Kilian to adopt Resolution 16-16 Application for 
Exemption from the Levy of any County Library Tax preventing the City of Platteville from 
double taxation for library services.  Motion carried on 6-0 on roll call vote. 

B. Use of Park Impact Fees for Lighting the Keystone Connection Trail (07/26/16) Director of 
Public Works, Howard Crofoot, explained the MPO trail is nearing completion.  The MPO 
Steering Committee has identified that lighting is necessary from the gazebo along the old 
rail bed up to Keystone Parkway behind Wal-Mart/Menards.  The MPO Steering Committee 
is requesting the common Council approve the use of a portion of the Park Impact Fees for 
this project.  The cost to light this trail would be approximately $19,000 according to an 
estimate by Schmidt Electric.  Funding would come from the balance of its remaining 
contingency and approximately $11,650 from the Park Impact Fees.  This would decrease the 
Park Impact Funds available for eligible Park Impact Fee projects.  Motion by Daus, second 
by Kilian to approve the MPO Steering Committee request of up to $11,650 of the Park 
Impact Fees to light the trail from the gazebo to Keystone using the contingency fund.  
Motion carried 6-0 on roll call vote. 

C. Ordinance 16-13Amending the Official Traffic Map – Ridge Avenue Bicycle Lanes 
(07/26/16) Public Works Director Crofoot explained this project is to eliminate parking on 
the north side of Ridge Avenue from Fourth St to Lancaster St for the purpose of installing 
bicycle lanes on both sides of Ridge Ave.  A meeting was held with the local citizens in that 
area and was generally well accepted.  Concern was on the amount of trucks and farm 
equipment that utilize Ridge Ave to go from State Hwy 80 to St Hwy 81 as a short cut.  The 
bike lane would be approximately 4’ wide from the edge of the curb to the street. Suggestions 
were made to continue this bike path to Sylvia St so it would end at the public pool.  Robin 
Fatzinger registered In Favor of this project.  Motion by Daus, second by Kilian to approve 
Ordinance 16-13 Amending the Official Traffic Map from Fourth St to Lancaster and 
eliminating parking on the North side of Ridge Ave. to install a bike lane.  Alderperson 
Seeboth-Wilson commented she would like the Community Safe Routes to consider 
eventually installing a bike lane from Fourth Street to Sylvia Street and then on to Pitt Street.  
Motion carried 6-0 on roll call vote.  

 
 



INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION 
A. Zoning Ordinance Amendments: Signage.  Community and Planning Director Joe Carroll 

explained that the proposed changes to the zoning regulations are primarily regarding 
temporary signage.  In response to increased enforcement of the current regulations, it 
became apparent that the community has issues with the way the ordinance is currently 
written.  The regulations are too restrictive and difficult to understand.  Staff has modified the 
ordinance to include additional definitions and also placed the regulations regarding 
temporary signs in a separate section.  This section is organized by separating the residential 
signs from the non-residential signs and includes permit exempt signs and signs that require a 
permit.  Due to a recent U.S. Supreme Court decision that limits the ability of sign ordinances 
to regulate the content of the signs, the regulations for all temporary signs will be modified 
appropriately.  Cost of the sign permit fees in the fee schedule will also be adjusted.  The Plan 
Commission approved the code amendments and sign permit fee changes. 

B. Resolution Approving the Platteville Main Street Inc. Wireless Project.  Jack Luedtke, 
Executive Director of the Main Street Program explained this will allow for a downtown 
wireless network from the Mining Museum to the new Hotel and Library.  A grant in the 
amount of $4,000 was received from the Southwest Community Foundation.  $6,000 was 
received from United Development Solutions, the developer of the Library Block, and $1,000 
of the Main Street monies will be used to begin this project.  The Main Street Program is 
asking the Common Council to approve the proposed Resolution and Agreement drawn up by 
City Attorney Brian McGraw allowing the use of City facilities for this wireless project.  This 
will allow free outdoor wireless service in the downtown area.  Other locations would be 
desirable as funding becomes available. 

C. Lead Water Service Line Update.  Public Works Director Crofoot explained this concerns 
structures built prior to the 50’s that utilized lead based piping and plumbing.  In Wisconsin, 
the law states the water utility owns the water service line in the public right-of-way to the 
curb shut off valve.  The customer owns the water service line on private property from the 
water shut-off valve to the house.  The City has been replacing lead based piping with each 
water main project.  The City informs the home owner/customer if their portion of the piping 
is lead based in case they want to replace their portion.  Most of the time, this is not done.  
The City qualifies for a “Principal Forgiveness” loan (grant) based on need.  This funding 
must be spent with 2 years.  Priority needs would be licensed Day Care facilities and 
residential properties.  The City would pre-qualify a local plumber to assist with this project.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Daus, second by Seeboth-Wilson to adjourn.  Motion carried 6-0 on roll call vote.  The 

meeting was adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Kim Lowery 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 

 
 



8/5/2016 Schedule of Bills 62841-62848 77,091.11$                 
8/5/2016 Payroll (ACH Deposits) 143592-143764 182,106.69$               
8/5/2016 Payroll Expense reimbursement 90.04$                       
8/12/2016 Schedule of Bills 62849-62862 5,010.16$                   
8/17/2016 Schedule of Bills 62863-62958 1,206,791.19$            

(22,319.41)$               
      Total 1,448,769.78$           

Ryan Knoernschild Police Dept Meals - Training (Volk Field) 40.04$                       
Karen Kurt City Manager Cell phone reimbursement 50.00$                       

90.04$                      

SCHEDULE OF BILLS

(W/S Bills now paid with City Bills)

MOUND CITY BANK:

8/5/2016 Travel Reimbursements



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     1
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

62841
08/16 08/05/2016 62841 AFLAC MONTHLY PREMIUMS  N PR0730161 1 396.06 396.06
08/16 08/05/2016 62841 AFLAC MONTHLY PREMIUMS  FL PR0730161 2 519.26 519.26

Total 62841: 915.32

62842
08/16 08/05/2016 62842 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  F PR0730161 1 15,942.48 15,942.48
08/16 08/05/2016 62842 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  S PR0730161 2 10,657.68 10,657.68
08/16 08/05/2016 62842 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX  S PR0730161 3 10,657.68 10,657.68
08/16 08/05/2016 62842 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX   PR0730161 4 2,492.49 2,492.49
08/16 08/05/2016 62842 INTERNAL REVENUE SE FEDERAL INCOME TAX   PR0730161 5 2,492.49 2,492.49

Total 62842: 42,242.82

62843
08/16 08/05/2016 62843 VANTAGE TRANSFER AG ICMA DEFERRED COMP   PR0730161 1 250.00 250.00

Total 62843: 250.00

62844
08/16 08/05/2016 62844 WI DEFERRED COMP BO DEFERRED COMPENSAT PR0730161 1 3,567.30 3,567.30
08/16 08/05/2016 62844 WI DEFERRED COMP BO DEFERRED COMPENSAT PR0730161 2 170.00 170.00

Total 62844: 3,737.30

62845
08/16 08/05/2016 62845 WI DEPT OF REVENUE STATE INCOME TAX  STA PR0730161 1 7,253.10 7,253.10

Total 62845: 7,253.10

62846
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  ADD PR0730161 1 25.00 25.00
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  EER PR0730161 2 6,186.85 6,186.85
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  EER PR0730161 3 2,689.80 2,689.80
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  EER PR0730161 4 1,530.98 1,530.98
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  ERR PR0730161 5 6,186.85 6,186.85
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  ERR PR0730161 6 3,867.61 3,867.61
08/16 08/05/2016 62846 WI RETIREMENT SYSTE WRS RETIREMENT  ERR PR0730161 7 1,530.98 1,530.98

Total 62846: 22,018.07

62847
08/16 08/05/2016 62847 WI SCTF CHILD SUPPORT  CHILD  PR0730161 1 218.00 218.00

Total 62847: 218.00

62848
08/16 08/05/2016 62848 WPPA/LEER UNION DUES  POLICE U PR0730161 1 456.50 456.50

Total 62848: 456.50

62849
08/16 08/12/2016 62849 CHIROPRACTIC ASSOCI ACCT #4824-DEAN 08/12/2016 1 374.40 374.40
08/16 08/12/2016 62849 CHIROPRACTIC ASSOCI ACCT #11782-DEAN HEAL 08/12/2016 2 288.00 288.00
08/16 08/12/2016 62849 CHIROPRACTIC ASSOCI ACCT #12468 - DEAN HE 08/12/2016 3 96.00 96.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     2
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

Total 62849: 758.40

62850
08/16 08/12/2016 62850 CROFOOT, HOWARD FLEX MEDICAL CLAIM R 08/12/2016 1 708.00 708.00

Total 62850: 708.00

62851
08/16 08/12/2016 62851 DEAN CLINIC 400134838 ACCT 08/12/2016 1 504.04 504.04
08/16 08/12/2016 62851 DEAN CLINIC ACCT #100852010 08/12/2016 2 66.03 66.03
08/16 08/12/2016 62851 DEAN CLINIC ACCT #100333351 08/12/2016 3 268.15 268.15

Total 62851: 838.22

62852
08/16 08/12/2016 62852 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FORFEITURES 08/04/2016 1 10.00 10.00
08/16 08/12/2016 62852 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FORFEITURES 08/05/2016 1 263.50 263.50
08/16 08/12/2016 62852 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FORFEITURES 08/11/2016 1 150.00 150.00

Total 62852: 423.50

62853
08/16 08/12/2016 62853 JOHNSON, BILL FLEX MEDICAL CLAIM RE 08/12/2016 1 42.00 42.00

Total 62853: 42.00

62854
08/16 08/12/2016 62854 LOWERY, KIM REIMB DRUG CO-PAY 08/12/16 1 17.23 17.23
08/16 08/12/2016 62854 LOWERY, KIM FLEX MEDICAL CLAIM R 08/12/2016 1 214.29 214.29

Total 62854: 231.52

62855
08/16 08/12/2016 62855 LUPEE, IRVIN REIMB MEDICAL COSTS 08/12/2016 1 77.80 77.80
08/16 08/12/2016 62855 LUPEE, IRVIN REIMB MEDICAL COSTS 08/12/2016 2 77.80 77.80

Total 62855: 155.60

62856
08/16 08/12/2016 62856 MCWILLIAMS MEMORIAL  MEMORIAL FOR DAVE M 08/12/2016 1 25.00 25.00

Total 62856: 25.00

62857
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 164133 ACCT 08/12/2016 1 21.26 21.26
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 180892 ACCT 08/12/2016 2 25.18 25.18
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 163783 ACCT 08/12/2016 3 15.30 15.30
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 163783 ACCT 08/12/2016 4 15.30 15.30
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 177205 ACCT 08/12/2016 5 3.50 3.50
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 177205 ACCT 08/12/2016 6 3.50 3.50
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 175800 ACCT 08/12/2016 7 21.29 21.29
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 150269 ACCT 08/12/2016 8 .72 .72
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 179918 ACCT 08/12/2016 9 5.96 5.96
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 179918 ACCT 08/12/2016 10 33.78 33.78
08/16 08/12/2016 62857 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 153825 ACCT 08/12/2016 11 260.37 260.37

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     3
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

Total 62857: 406.16

62858
08/16 08/12/2016 62858 RICE MEMORIAL FUND,  MEMORIAL FOR WENDE 08/12/2016 1 25.00 25.00

Total 62858: 25.00

62859
08/16 08/12/2016 62859 SCENIC RIVERS ENERG ELECTRICITY-STREET LI 08/01/2016 1 411.58 411.58

Total 62859: 411.58

62860
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 1052429 ACCT 08/12/2016 1 41.62 41.62
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 964143 ACCT 08/12/2016 2 48.65 48.65
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #868163 08/12/2016 3 233.14 233.14
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #843353 08/12/2016 4 270.00 270.00
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #843353 08/12/2016 5 270.00 270.00
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #846695 08/12/2016 6 30.89 30.89
08/16 08/12/2016 62860 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #846695 08/12/2016 7 30.89 30.89

Total 62860: 925.19

62861
08/16 08/12/2016 62861 UPLAND HILLS HOMETO 13950 ACCT 08/12/2016 1 3.14 3.14
08/16 08/12/2016 62861 UPLAND HILLS HOMETO 13950 ACCT 08/12/2016 2 17.77 17.77

Total 62861: 20.91

62862
08/16 08/12/2016 62862 WKM PSYCHOLOGY 50373173SRB ACCT 08/12/2016 1 39.08 39.08

Total 62862: 39.08

62863
08/16 08/17/2016 62863 AHA CONSULTING INC WEBSITE BASE FEATUR INV5 1 7,000.00 7,000.00

Total 62863: 7,000.00

62864
08/16 08/17/2016 62864 AIH CHROME REFURBISH LIGHT POLE 39051 1 1,865.00 1,865.00

Total 62864: 1,865.00

62865
08/16 08/17/2016 62865 ALLEGIANT OIL LLC FIRE DEPT CHARGES 4033 1 65.00 65.00

Total 62865: 65.00

62866
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-CITY  08/17/2016 1 29.89 29.89
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-FIRE  08/17/2016 2 834.35 834.35
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-EME 08/17/2016 3 5.98 5.98
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STR 08/17/2016 4 223.04 223.04
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-STO 08/17/2016 5 346.98 346.98

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     4
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-MUS 08/17/2016 6 1,206.74 1,206.74
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-SR  08/17/2016 7 704.15 704.15
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-PAR 08/17/2016 8 1,426.46 1,426.46
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC/HEATING-POO 08/17/2016 9 73.83 73.83
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-WATER 08/17/2016 10 53.05 53.05
08/16 08/17/2016 62866 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L ELECTRIC-SEWER 08/17/2016 11 135.63 135.63

Total 62866: 5,040.10

62867
08/16 08/17/2016 62867 ALS ELECTRIC INC ELECTRICAL AT FIRE STA 8162134 1 3,994.20 3,994.20

Total 62867: 3,994.20

62868
08/16 08/17/2016 62868 AUTOMOTIVE INDUSTRI SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 117506 1 175.00 175.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62868 AUTOMOTIVE INDUSTRI WATER EXPENSE 117513 1 105.00 105.00

Total 62868: 280.00

62869
08/16 08/17/2016 62869 BADGER WELDING SUPP MONTHLY CYLINDER RE 3357534 1 2.79 2.79

Total 62869: 2.79

62870
08/16 08/17/2016 62870 BAKER & TAYLOR SUPPLIES-LIBRARY 2032184497 1 44.00 44.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62870 BAKER & TAYLOR SUPPLIES-LIBRARY 2032184498 1 260.91 260.91

Total 62870: 304.91

62871
08/16 08/17/2016 62871 BAKER IRON WORKS LL REPAIRS-CEMETERY 69258 1 25.80 25.80

Total 62871: 25.80

62872
08/16 08/17/2016 62872 BARD MATERIALS BIKE PADS MPO TRAIL 229992 1 366.00 366.00

Total 62872: 366.00

62873
08/16 08/17/2016 62873 BILLS PLUMBING & HEAT HOOK UP SEWER LATER 28661 1 595.05 595.05
08/16 08/17/2016 62873 BILLS PLUMBING & HEAT WATER HEATER-MUSEU 28672 1 1,095.68 1,095.68
08/16 08/17/2016 62873 BILLS PLUMBING & HEAT DONATION OF LABOR 28672 2 112.50- 112.50-

Total 62873: 1,578.23

62874
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 1 195.00 195.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE RECREATION DEPT CHA 7/2-8/2/2016 2 78.50 78.50
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE RECREATION DEPT CHA 7/2-8/2/2016 3 53.70 53.70
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE RECREATION DEPT CHA 7/2-8/2/2016 4 34.51 34.51
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POOL CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 5 76.51 76.51
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CITY MANAGER CHARGE 7/2-8/2/2016 6 62.72 62.72
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE CLERK CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 7 125.42 125.42

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     5
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE ELECTION CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 8 212.47 212.47
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 9 3.22 3.22
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 10 169.27 169.27
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 11 13.80 13.80
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 12 123.50 123.50
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE POLICE DEPT CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 13 49.54 49.54
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE PARKS CHARGE 7/2-8/2/2016 14 174.15 174.15
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MPO TRAIL 7/2-8/2/2016 15 52.97 52.97
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE LIBRARY CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 16 11.00 11.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 17 9.79 9.79
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 18 379.67 379.67
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MUSEUM CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 19 182.00 182.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE COMPUTER CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 20 1,388.10 1,388.10
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE GALLERY CHARGES 7/2-8/2/2016 21 22.89 22.89
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SENIOR CENTER CHARG 7/2-8/2/2016 22 152.39 152.39
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SENIOR CENTER CHARG 7/2-8/2/2016 23 36.47 36.47
08/16 08/17/2016 62874 CARDMEMBER SERVICE SENIOR CENTER CHARG 7/2-8/2/2016 24 625.00 625.00

Total 62874: 4,232.59

62875
08/16 08/17/2016 62875 CARRICO AQUATIC RES WATER MANAGEMENT C 20161206 1 2,778.30 2,778.30
08/16 08/17/2016 62875 CARRICO AQUATIC RES POOL CHARGES 20162814 1 170.00 170.00

Total 62875: 2,948.30

62876
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-ADMI 08/03/2016 1 637.19 637.19
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-POLIC 08/03/2016 2 1,021.66 1,021.66
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-MUSE 08/03/2016 3 95.00 95.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-FIRE  08/03/2016 4 151.88 151.88
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-EMER 08/03/2016 5 142.48 142.48
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-STRE 08/03/2016 6 96.56 96.56
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-MUSE 08/03/2016 7 49.63 49.63
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-ROUN 08/03/2016 8 38.90 38.90
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-SENI 08/03/2016 9 39.80 39.80
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-PARK 08/03/2016 10 52.25 52.25
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-POOL 08/03/2016 11 157.71 157.71
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-RECR 08/03/2016 12 48.57 48.57
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-LIBRA 08/03/2016 13 482.84 482.84
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE CHARGES-AIRP 08/03/2016 14 183.72 183.72
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE BILLS-WATER DE 08/03/2016 15 21.24 21.24
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE BILLS-SEWER D 08/03/2016 16 21.24 21.24
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE BILLS-WATER DE 08/03/2016 17 102.56 102.56
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE BILLS-WATER DE 08/03/2016 18 253.45 253.45
08/16 08/17/2016 62876 CENTURYLINK PHONE BILLS-SEWER D 08/03/2016 19 176.33 176.33

Total 62876: 3,773.01

62877
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK AIRPORT LONG DISTANC 07/31/2016 1 .14 .14
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK GALLERY LONG DISTAN 07/31/2016 2 .07 .07
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK RECREATION LONG DIST 07/31/2016 3 .07 .07
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK CITY MANAGER LONG DI 07/31/2016 4 .06 .06
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK CITY CLERK LONG DISTA 07/31/2016 5 .05 .05
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK ENGINEERING LONG DIS 07/31/2016 6 .07 .07

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     6
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK FIRE DEPT LONG DISTAN 07/31/2016 7 .12 .12
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK LIBRARY LONG DISTANC 07/31/2016 8 .23 .23
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK MUSEUM LONG DISTANC 07/31/2016 9 .13 .13
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK PARKS DEPT LONG DIST 07/31/2016 10 .07 .07
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK POLICE DEPT LONG DIST 07/31/2016 11 58.73 58.73
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK RECREATION LONG DIST 07/31/2016 12 .07 .07
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK SENIOR CENTER LONG  07/31/2016 13 .77 .77
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK WATER LONG DISTANCE 07/31/2016 14 .38 .38
08/16 08/17/2016 62877 CENTURYLINK SEWER LONG DISTANCE 07/31/2016 15 .38 .38

Total 62877: 61.34

62878
08/16 08/17/2016 62878 CHIROPRACTIC ASSOCI 10912-DEAN HEALTH 08/17/2016 1 115.80 115.80
08/16 08/17/2016 62878 CHIROPRACTIC ASSOCI 10912-DEAN HEALTH 08/17/2016 2 115.80 115.80

Total 62878: 231.60

62879
08/16 08/17/2016 62879 CINTAS CORPORATION # CLEANING SUPPLIES-PO 446105240 1 155.03 155.03
08/16 08/17/2016 62879 CINTAS CORPORATION # BROWN MATS - POLICE  446105240 2 18.51 18.51
08/16 08/17/2016 62879 CINTAS CORPORATION # CLEANING SUPPLIES-PO 446107817 1 116.86 116.86

Total 62879: 290.40

62880
08/16 08/17/2016 62880 COMELEC SERVICES IN POLICE DEPT CHARGE 448131-IN 1 414.30 414.30

Total 62880: 414.30

62881
08/16 08/17/2016 62881 CRANE ENGINEERING S BUTTERFLY VALVE W/PE 312096-00 1 5,000.10 5,000.10

Total 62881: 5,000.10

62882
08/16 08/17/2016 62882 DEBS FASHIONS TO FIT UNIFORM ITEMS/ALTERA 156554 1 26.00 26.00

Total 62882: 26.00

62883
08/16 08/17/2016 62883 EAGLE ENGRAVING INC FIRE DEPT CHARGES 2016-2057 1 104.29 104.29

Total 62883: 104.29

62884
08/16 08/17/2016 62884 EASTMAN CARTWRIGHT  WATER DEPT SUPPLIES 20015500 1 19.26 19.26
08/16 08/17/2016 62884 EASTMAN CARTWRIGHT  MUSEUM DEPT CHARGE 20015515 1 30.40 30.40

Total 62884: 49.66

62885
08/16 08/17/2016 62885 ED M FELD EQUIP CO IN FIRE DEPT CHARGES 299423-IN 1 265.50 265.50

Total 62885: 265.50

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     7
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

62886
08/16 08/17/2016 62886 ERSCHENS FLORIST SYMPATHY ARRANGEME 07/29/2016 1 99.95 99.95

Total 62886: 99.95

62887
08/16 08/17/2016 62887 EXACT SCIENCES LABO 687054724 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 109.80 109.80

Total 62887: 109.80

62888
08/16 08/17/2016 62888 FIRST SUPPLY LLC-DUB WATER SUPPLIES 1399945-00 1 113.53 113.53
08/16 08/17/2016 62888 FIRST SUPPLY LLC-DUB WATER SUPPLIES 1400494-00 1 7.07- 7.07-

Total 62888: 106.46

62889
08/16 08/17/2016 62889 FRUIT, DARREN REFUND OVRPYMT WAT 2-1160-12 1 3.29 3.29
08/16 08/17/2016 62889 FRUIT, DARREN REFUND OVRPYMT WAT 2-1170-08 1 2.39 2.39

Total 62889: 5.68

62890
08/16 08/17/2016 62890 GIERKE ROBINSON CO I SUPPLIES-WATER DEPT 2108448-000 1 144.84 144.84
08/16 08/17/2016 62890 GIERKE ROBINSON CO I SUPPLIES-WATER DEPT 2108573-000 1 240.75 240.75

Total 62890: 385.59

62891
08/16 08/17/2016 62891 GORDON FLESCH COMP COPIES-CLERK IN11629722 1 20.00 20.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62891 GORDON FLESCH COMP COPIES-COUNCIL IN11629722 2 15.00 15.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62891 GORDON FLESCH COMP COPIES-CITY MANAGER IN11629722 3 290.13 290.13
08/16 08/17/2016 62891 GORDON FLESCH COMP COPIES-WATER DEPT IN11629722 4 72.30 72.30
08/16 08/17/2016 62891 GORDON FLESCH COMP COPIES-WWTP IN11629722 5 72.29 72.29

Total 62891: 469.72

62892
08/16 08/17/2016 62892 GRANT CTY CLERK OF C FORFEITURES 08/15/2016 1 250.90 250.90

Total 62892: 250.90

62893
08/16 08/17/2016 62893 GRANT REGIONAL COM 350011101 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 26.80 26.80

Total 62893: 26.80

62894
08/16 08/17/2016 62894 GRASSPRO LAWNCARE  WEED AND GRASS MOW 3042 1 100.00 100.00

Total 62894: 100.00

62895
08/16 08/17/2016 62895 GREAT RIVER ORAL & M 134083 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 1,231.87 1,231.87

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     8
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

Total 62895: 1,231.87

62896
08/16 08/17/2016 62896 GUNDERSEN HEALTH  S DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTI 4-482 8/6/20 1 35.00 35.00

Total 62896: 35.00

62897
08/16 08/17/2016 62897 HD SUPPLY WATERWOR METER F879453 1 1,165.70 1,165.70
08/16 08/17/2016 62897 HD SUPPLY WATERWOR SUPPLIES-WATER DEPT F917864 1 72.28 72.28

Total 62897: 1,237.98

62898
08/16 08/17/2016 62898 HIGH POINT FAMILY MED ACCT #19659 08/17/2016 1 416.78 416.78

Total 62898: 416.78

62899
08/16 08/17/2016 62899 INNOVATIVE AG SERVIC SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 1333834 1 16.60 16.60

Total 62899: 16.60

62900
08/16 08/17/2016 62900 IVERSON CONSTRUCTIO HOT MIX-WWTP 5100008083 1 969.86 969.86
08/16 08/17/2016 62900 IVERSON CONSTRUCTIO MADISON STREET REPAI 5100008115 1 7,125.00 7,125.00

Total 62900: 8,094.86

62901
08/16 08/17/2016 62901 IWI MOTOR PARTS SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 1096286 1 10.20 10.20

Total 62901: 10.20

62902
08/16 08/17/2016 62902 J & N STONE LLC WATER DEPT CHARGES 3867 1 199.50 199.50

Total 62902: 199.50

62903
08/16 08/17/2016 62903 J & R SUPPLY INC WATER SUPPLIES 1607667-IN 1 1,094.96 1,094.96
08/16 08/17/2016 62903 J & R SUPPLY INC WATER SUPPLIES 1607930-IN 1 71.70 71.70
08/16 08/17/2016 62903 J & R SUPPLY INC WATER SUPPLIES 1608079-IN 1 78.00 78.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62903 J & R SUPPLY INC WWTP SUPPLIES 1608079-IN 2 198.00 198.00

Total 62903: 1,442.66

62904
08/16 08/17/2016 62904 LOUGHRAN, HALEY REFUND OVRPYMT WAT 31-0435-11 1 1.91 1.91

Total 62904: 1.91

62905
08/16 08/17/2016 62905 LV LABORATORIES LLC BACTERIOLOGICAL TES 13730 1 25.00 25.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     9
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

Total 62905: 25.00

62906
08/16 08/17/2016 62906 MADISON RADIOLOGIST 645785-1 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 14.43 14.43

Total 62906: 14.43

62907
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 179546 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 39.66 39.66
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181922 ACCT 08/17/2016 2 157.45 157.45
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181562 ACCT 08/17/2016 3 35.35 35.35
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181562 ACCT 08/17/2016 4 6.43 6.43
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181562 ACCT 08/17/2016 5 3.21 3.21
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181562 ACCT 08/17/2016 6 3.21 3.21
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181562 ACCT 08/17/2016 7 16.07 16.07
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 179546 ACCT 08/17/2016 8 334.94 334.94
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 182781 ACCT 08/17/2016 9 194.61 194.61
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 181874 ACCT 08/17/2016 10 361.48 361.48
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 183532 ACCT 08/17/2016 11 2.32 2.32
08/16 08/17/2016 62907 MEDICAL ASSOCIATES C 183532 ACCT 08/17/2016 12 13.18 13.18

Total 62907: 1,167.91

62908
08/16 08/17/2016 62908 MENARDS SUPPLIES-POOL 84431 1 21.12 21.12

Total 62908: 21.12

62909
08/16 08/17/2016 62909 MID-AMERICAN RESEAR WWTP SUPPLIES 586355-IN 1 137.15 137.15

Total 62909: 137.15

62910
08/16 08/17/2016 62910 MIDWEST PATCH BLACKTOP PATCH-STRE 1965 1 716.80 716.80

Total 62910: 716.80

62911
08/16 08/17/2016 62911 MIDWEST TESTING WATER METER TESTS-W 3884 1 1,100.00 1,100.00

Total 62911: 1,100.00

62912
08/16 08/17/2016 62912 MILESTONE MATERIALS WWTP CHARGES 3500016131 1 175.75 175.75
08/16 08/17/2016 62912 MILESTONE MATERIALS SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 3500016909 1 285.25 285.25
08/16 08/17/2016 62912 MILESTONE MATERIALS GRAVEL - STREET DEPT 3500017481 1 350.22 350.22

Total 62912: 811.22

62913
08/16 08/17/2016 62913 MINIMED DISTRIBUTION  ACCT #160332 08/17/2016 1 324.27 324.27

Total 62913: 324.27

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     10
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

62914
08/16 08/17/2016 62914 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ENVELOPES-WATER/SE 35941 1 231.79 231.79
08/16 08/17/2016 62914 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ENVELOPES-WATER/SE 35941 2 231.78 231.78
08/16 08/17/2016 62914 MORRISSEY PRINTING I ENVELOPES-WEED & GR 36071 1 33.64 33.64

Total 62914: 497.21

62915
08/16 08/17/2016 62915 MOUND CITY BANK STATE INVESTMENT FUN 08/17/2016 1 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

Total 62915: 1,000,000.00

62916
08/16 08/17/2016 62916 MV SERVICE & CONSULT RENTAL INSPECTIONS 5714 1 18,154.00 18,154.00

Total 62916: 18,154.00

62917
08/16 08/17/2016 62917 MY TIRES INC TIRES - STREET 103740 1 157.29 157.29

Total 62917: 157.29

62918
08/16 08/17/2016 62918 NCL OF WISCONSIN INC WWTP SUPPLIES 376458 1 178.17 178.17
08/16 08/17/2016 62918 NCL OF WISCONSIN INC WWTP TESTING 376965 1 1,558.31 1,558.31

Total 62918: 1,736.48

62919
08/16 08/17/2016 62919 PERGER, ANDREW REFUND TRIATHLON FE 2000555.002 1 35.00 35.00

Total 62919: 35.00

62920
08/16 08/17/2016 62920 PETTY CASH/TREASURE WORK PERMIT-SUMMER  08/17/2016 1 10.00 10.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62920 PETTY CASH/TREASURE WORK PERMIT-SUMMER  08/17/2016 2 10.00 10.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62920 PETTY CASH/TREASURE WORK PERMIT-MUSEUM 08/17/2016 3 10.00 10.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62920 PETTY CASH/TREASURE STATE PROJECT 5035-02 08/17/2016 4 .03 .03

Total 62920: 30.03

62921
08/16 08/17/2016 62921 PIONEER FORD SALES L VEHICLE EXPENSE-WWT 23106 1 17.25 17.25

Total 62921: 17.25

62922
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-ENGINEERIN 07/31/2016 1 7.67 7.67
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-POLICE DEPT 07/31/2016 2 28.96 28.96
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 07/31/2016 3 85.29 85.29
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 07/31/2016 4 2.40 2.40
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 07/31/2016 5 27.67 27.67
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 07/31/2016 6 33.72 33.72
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-MUSEUM 07/31/2016 7 11.49 11.49
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP SUPPLIES-PARKS 07/31/2016 8 7.51 7.51
08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP WWTP SUPPLIES 07/31/2016 9 10.47 10.47

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     11
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

08/16 08/17/2016 62922 PLATTEVILLE AUTO SUP WWTP SUPPLIES 07/31/2016 10 6.13 6.13

Total 62922: 221.31

62923
08/16 08/17/2016 62923 PLATTEVILLE CLEANERS FIRE DEPT CHARGES 8616 1 2.85 2.85
08/16 08/17/2016 62923 PLATTEVILLE CLEANERS FIRE DEPT CHARGES 8700 1 2.85 2.85
08/16 08/17/2016 62923 PLATTEVILLE CLEANERS FIRE DEPT CHARGES J3334 1 8.80 8.80

Total 62923: 14.50

62924
08/16 08/17/2016 62924 PLATTEVILLE FAMILY RE MEDICAL PMTS 08/17/2016 1 480.00 480.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62924 PLATTEVILLE FAMILY RE MEDICAL PMTS 08/17/2016 2 442.13 442.13

Total 62924: 922.13

62925
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-SR CTR 33486 1 270.00 270.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-MUSEUM JULY 2016 1 44.45 44.45
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  JULY 4TH JULY 2016 2 250.00 250.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-COUNCIL JULY 2016 3 236.34 236.34
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-CLERK JULY 2016 4 28.58 28.58
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-POLICE D JULY 2016 5 161.92 161.92
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-FREUDEN JULY 2016 6 38.10 38.10
08/16 08/17/2016 62925 PLATTEVILLE JOURNAL,  ADVERTISING-COMMUNI JULY 2016 7 38.10 38.10

Total 62925: 1,067.49

62926
08/16 08/17/2016 62926 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMI SEWER SIMPLIFIED RAT 1607-I-04700 1 235.00 235.00

Total 62926: 235.00

62927
08/16 08/17/2016 62927 WGLR-FM JMA ADVERTISING 77123A-1 1 40.00 40.00

Total 62927: 40.00

62928
08/16 08/17/2016 62928 QUEENB RADIO WISCON JMA ADVERTISING 77123B-1 1 60.00 60.00

Total 62928: 60.00

62929
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-BLDG  6807510 1 17.48 17.48
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-COM 6807510 2 17.49 17.49
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-WATE 7503150 1 11.99 11.99
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-WWT 7503150 2 11.99 11.99
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-FINAN 7823102 1 24.99 24.99
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-FINAN 7826613 1 115.08 115.08
08/16 08/17/2016 62929 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES-ADMI 8067465 1 51.36 51.36

Total 62929: 250.38

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     12
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

62930
08/16 08/17/2016 62930 RULE CONSTRUCTION L MPO TRAIL PAVING & LIG 14-14 #8 1 89,195.47 89,195.47
08/16 08/17/2016 62930 RULE CONSTRUCTION L MPO TRAIL CROSSING V 6-15 #4 1 20,387.49 20,387.49

Total 62930: 109,582.96

62931
08/16 08/17/2016 62931 SAIKO, PAM REFUND PARTIAL CAMPI 08/09/2016 1 5.00 5.00

Total 62931: 5.00

62932
08/16 08/17/2016 62932 SANDMIRE, AARON REFUND OVRPYMT WAT 21-0403-02 1 58.88 58.88

Total 62932: 58.88

62933
08/16 08/17/2016 62933 SCHIPPER, SAMANTHA OVRPYMT WATER/SEWE 9-0483-11 (2) 1 42.31 42.31

Total 62933: 42.31

62934
08/16 08/17/2016 62934 SCHMIDT ELECTRICAL C CITY HALL STEPS 509 1 1,373.16 1,373.16

Total 62934: 1,373.16

62935
08/16 08/17/2016 62935 SCOTT IMPLEMENT NEW LAWN MOWER 14571 1 8,400.00 8,400.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62935 SCOTT IMPLEMENT TRADE-IN LAWN MOWER 14571 2 5,600.00- 5,600.00-
08/16 08/17/2016 62935 SCOTT IMPLEMENT SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 7759 1 93.80 93.80
08/16 08/17/2016 62935 SCOTT IMPLEMENT SUPPLIES-FIRE DEPT 8762P 1 6.95 6.95

Total 62935: 2,900.75

62936
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 1 29.04 29.04
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 2 2.01 2.01
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 3 38.09 38.09
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 4 3.74 3.74
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 5 64.51 64.51
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 6 .48 .48
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 7 204.49 204.49
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 8 23.36 23.36
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 9 53.00 53.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 10 73.19 73.19
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 11 80.39 80.39
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 12 3.65 3.65
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 13 9.59 9.59
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 14 19.36 19.36
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 15 11.41 11.41
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 16 69.29 69.29
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 17 52.26 52.26
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 18 11.78 11.78
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 19 51.02 51.02
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 20 15.88 15.88
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 21 .71 .71

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     13
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 22 34.49 34.49
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 23 49.28 49.28
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 24 117.79 117.79
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 25 243.42 243.42
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 26 796.57 796.57
08/16 08/17/2016 62936 SECURIAN FINANCIAL G MONTHLY LIFE INS PRE 047102-SEP 27 140.00 140.00

Total 62936: 2,198.80

62937
08/16 08/17/2016 62937 SHARP ELECTRONICS C COPIER MAINTENANCE- 10873979 1 358.79 358.79

Total 62937: 358.79

62938
08/16 08/17/2016 62938 SHERWIN WILLIAMS SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 3824-8 1 171.15 171.15
08/16 08/17/2016 62938 SHERWIN WILLIAMS PAINT-STREET DEPT 4015-2 1 218.25 218.25
08/16 08/17/2016 62938 SHERWIN WILLIAMS SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 4852-4 1 70.18 70.18

Total 62938: 459.58

62939
08/16 08/17/2016 62939 SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP WET SPRINKLER SYSTE 78792868 1 782.58 782.58

Total 62939: 782.58

62940
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #868556 08/17/2016 1 106.84 106.84
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #868556 08/17/2016 2 106.84 106.84
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 941262 ACCT 08/17/2016 3 229.13 229.13
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 890565 ACCT 08/17/2016 4 89.93 89.93
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #868556 08/17/2016 5 392.91 392.91
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE ACCT #868556 08/17/2016 6 392.90 392.90
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 884405 ACCT 08/17/2016 7 210.77 210.77
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 884405 ACCT 08/17/2016 8 210.78 210.78
08/16 08/17/2016 62940 SOUTHWEST HEALTH CE 929074 ACCT 08/17/2016 9 313.86 313.86

Total 62940: 2,053.96

62941
08/16 08/17/2016 62941 SOUTHWEST OPPORTU JANITORIAL SERVICES-P 17718 1 1,571.00 1,571.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62941 SOUTHWEST OPPORTU SHRED DOCUMENTS-CIT 17735 1 37.00 37.00

Total 62941: 1,608.00

62942
08/16 08/17/2016 62942 SPEE-DEE FREIGHT 3100579 1 10.50 10.50
08/16 08/17/2016 62942 SPEE-DEE FREIGHT 3111212 1 15.06 15.06

Total 62942: 25.56

62943
08/16 08/17/2016 62943 SW WI COMM ACT PROG  CDBG MONTHLY EXPEN 6998 1 577.85 577.85

Total 62943: 577.85

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     14
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

62944
08/16 08/17/2016 62944 TAPCO SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT I534983 1 322.61 322.61
08/16 08/17/2016 62944 TAPCO MATERIALS FOR SIGNS- I535305 1 138.36 138.36

Total 62944: 460.97

62945
08/16 08/17/2016 62945 TIFCO INDUSTRIES SUPPLIES-WWTP 71174578 1 89.89 89.89

Total 62945: 89.89

62946
08/16 08/17/2016 62946 UBERSOX CHRYSLER IN SENIOR CENTER CHARG 3060195 1 1,110.30 1,110.30

Total 62946: 1,110.30

62947
08/16 08/17/2016 62947 UPLAND HILLS HEALTH 750024304 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 525.53 525.53

Total 62947: 525.53

62948
08/16 08/17/2016 62948 UPLAND HILLS HEALTH A XE15901 ACCT 08/17/2016 1 314.64 314.64

Total 62948: 314.64

62949
08/16 08/17/2016 62949 US CELLULAR CELL PHONE CHGS. - FI 148172576 1 77.86 77.86

Total 62949: 77.86

62950
08/16 08/17/2016 62950 VIEWPOINT SCREEN PRI DUAL/TRIATHLON SHIRT 07/30/2016 1 108.50 108.50
08/16 08/17/2016 62950 VIEWPOINT SCREEN PRI SHIRTS TO SALE-MUSEU 08/15/2016 1 306.75 306.75

Total 62950: 415.25

62951
08/16 08/17/2016 62951 VIKING CHEMICAL COMP CHEMICALS 35744 1 212.75 212.75
08/16 08/17/2016 62951 VIKING CHEMICAL COMP CHEMICALS 35744 2 271.20 271.20

Total 62951: 483.95

62952
08/16 08/17/2016 62952 VON BRIESEN & ROPER  PERSONNEL 10633 1 154.00 154.00

Total 62952: 154.00

62953
08/16 08/17/2016 62953 WALKERS CLOTHING & S UNIFORMS-WATER DEPT 8315 1 378.98 378.98

Total 62953: 378.98

62954
08/16 08/17/2016 62954 WALLENHORST, KAITLYN REFUND OVRPYMT WAT 38-1510-03 1 26.13 26.13

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF PLATTEVILLE Check Register - Check Summary with Description Page:     15
Check Issue Dates: 8/4/2016 - 8/17/2016 Aug 17, 2016  01:01PM

GL Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice Check
Period Issue Date Number Payee Number Seq Amount Amount

Total 62954: 26.13

62955
08/16 08/17/2016 62955 WI STATE LAB OF HYGIE WATER TESTING 468966 1 25.00 25.00

Total 62955: 25.00

62956
08/16 08/17/2016 62956 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 1996-82016 1 120.00 120.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62956 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 1997-82016 1 120.00 120.00
08/16 08/17/2016 62956 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 1998-82016 1 65.53 65.53
08/16 08/17/2016 62956 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 1998-82016 2 54.47 54.47
08/16 08/17/2016 62956 WISCONSIN LOGOS LLC ADVERTISING-MUSEUM 1999-82016 1 120.00 120.00

Total 62956: 480.00

62957
08/16 08/17/2016 62957 WKM PSYCHOLOGY 29923671SRB 08/17/2016 1 78.16 78.16

Total 62957: 78.16

62958
08/16 08/17/2016 62958 WRIGHT, ANGELA WEDA COMM & ECONOM 57 1 225.00 225.00

Total 62958: 225.00

Grand Totals: 1,288,892.46

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS VACANCIES LIST    
As of 08/15/16 

 

 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (partial term ending 10/1/18) 
Board of Review (5 year term ending after 2021 session) 
Commission on Aging (3 year terms ending 7/1/19) 
Community Safe Routes Committee (3 year term ending 9/1/19) 
Historic Preservation Alternate (3 year term ending 5/1/19) 
Plan Commission (partial term ending 5/1/17) 
Redevelopment Authority Board (5 year term ending 7/1/21) 
 
UPCOMING VACANCIES – October 1 
 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) (3 year term ending 10/1/19) 
Board of Appeals (Zoning) Alternate (3 year term ending 10/1/19) 
Community Development Board (2 - 3 year terms ending 10/1/19) 
Water & Sewer Commission (5 year term ending 10/1/21) 
 
 
 
 
Application forms for the City of Platteville Boards and Commissions are available in the 
City Clerk’s office in the Municipal Building at 75 N Bonson Street, Platteville, WI or online at 
www.platteville.org.  Please note that most positions require City residency. 

 
 
 

http://www.platteville.org/


PROPOSED LICENSES 
August 23, 2016 

 
 

Change of Agent 
- Wal-Mart Stores East LP, Bentonville, AR (Ryan S Langenecker, Agent), for 

premises at 1800 Progressive Pkwy (Walmart #958) 
 
 
One Year Operator License 

- Jacob A Boreen 
- Mason T Hawes 
- Kellie M Perleberg 
- Kathryn M Reuter 
- Kyle C Rokusek 
- Whitni M Wiederholt 

 
 
Two Year Operator License 

- Sarah E Droessler 
- Doreen L Dochnahl 
- David K Hofer 
- Timothy J Stoffregen 
- Cassandra P Walsh 
- Travis W Wright 

 
 
 



L
R

T

Check one: f-_| para

ll w.¡tk

ATTEVILLA
"=:,==== ,,t:!('ft{vt=

de

- a- tlìon

n orherCI
PÀRADE, f,iALK

============

Date per¡nit request.ed

Name of o an izat ion uesting permi

{4,.t'l Í;
DaËe,/Time

Route (or

,in

attach map)

(SÒl,lrt..(, -.p

f ¿,t l\

Numl¡er

Arnount.

Name of

Address

"-J
of participanrs -7r¿ (\ /

of Liability Insurance

rnsrrrance Conpany _ /'1.

cerrificate Receive¿, .',1 / I Í: /l i:, t¡u¡o¡
Name of

Address

Phone

Parade Marshall

Àssembly Area

Disbanding A¡ea

Narne of representatlve of the organizalion who can be cont.acted in theproblem:

Q. rf
event of

/ - -? "'\ ,// c-.*€L :
'-' ./<y'-- tl ó 5 i

Signalure of person reguesting

Ci'ty Ordinance 4I.07

l::l $5o.oo fee accompanies thisapplication

Request fee to be waived

Phone:

Date approved

Approved by the City Council

lssuect.by
City Clerk

Fee {if charged) : $

permit

,n
Receipt f



lor 
vntrua nn.

Pt-ï.d;
&E p)

CLUB CT

eo)"'--\-
NOR fHSIDE DR.

HIGHPOINT TAMARAC TR. PINE ßO,_,a *_iYY5

'Hq ( -,:.: )

.*$.s{-"'

OL'$"n

;;i

,,ll ¿

Çcluol

.a

tM

.S¡

W PINE ST.

rl:".
IVËRS|Wof
ìII.¡ ^PL A]TEULLE

GREENWOOD AVE.

*T*'.-
IRENE ST

Él-'Ø,
uJt
o¡
el
É
co

to\
a,¡
9lo!
-, {

I
i..

ti,rd''

.r'' q\-/
+o), /
'qh

'\-l ¡ L$2.=>ãÉ'e
.v's â

YÆ F*'c-\t-t-áq-
5+--r* --¿

ú*-\,_lptlåî!"-sl...

' ïB¡¡&ç¡.¡.

\" /-.tþ*"f
9r- v¡AA o* ru

c¡f r- , '^Q'r

LU-

A

rß,æ

q

[9.,"
'\{

(t,-.
F.¡]
rû Ci ./wtr I
V i FREIw,¡-lØ1

,f-r,[3 /'- _-c .ç> f
T.9!sp", ^}:d 

-Í

>i -*i'(J'Jqrsr

,f*'dþ*

Øl

È/'nt¡iì

'1 "

uj I

3l$
l--i-Ø:

,wl4|¡;;fr/
6tjti
/-.{{.qir,*
| ¡ !!.:

ul>!<'i p
$ii àt

nve. Él j;
:<l ro!õl sltrt ¿.*t d..
lol

cnroLe{ lvr,
:4

t-
(t>

u,
t.-

>l
il/ cARLtsr.[ I,.-_"_*_ .l

no**,a,r"l

llqi
ËJ äioì

B+-¡.1 ç ++aT-Sui c-r be- frua¡enril>''/- (ff$üd"¿r-an'j¿;)



SUICPRE.Ol MPLOESSL
ACORD

Ç- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

712012016
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MA,TTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE |SSU|NG INSURER(S), AUTHORTZED
REPRËSENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
lMPoRTANT;lfthecertificateholderisanADDlTloNaulHsÙne
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A stat€ment on this cêrtificate does not confêr rights to thê
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

TRICOR, lnc, - Platteville
1370 N. Water Street
Platteville, Wl 538'tB

I}¡StJRED

Suicide Prevention Resource Center
660 7th Ave
Platteville, Wl 53818

iXüÈî"' Select x2840 select@tricorinsurance.com
fjJ3,Nfi". E.tÌ.2840 | lÅð, N") (608) 72s-6440

FiffiE.r, select@tricorinsurance.com
tNsuRER(S) AFFORDTNG COVERAGE NAIC #

rNsunen ¡ , NSI /- West Bend Mutual
INSURER B :

INSURÊR C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E:

INSIJRER F:

REVISION NUMBER:
THlSlsToCERTlFYTHATTHEPoLlclEsoFlNsURANcELlSTEDBELoW¡ravlaGEÑ
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONIRACTOROTHERDOCUMENTWITHRESPECTTOWHICHTHIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HERËINISSUBJECTTOALLTHETERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS-

CERTIFIÇAIE H0LDER cANcELLATtoN

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

"or'"" |-l 5F.oi l-l .o"

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

AUIOI,IOBILE LIABILIry

ALLOWNED I ìSCHEDULEDAUTOS I I AUTOS
rl NoN-owNED

HTREDAUïoS I I AUrOs

BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) | $

WORKERS COMPENSAlION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILIIY
ANY PROPRI ETOR'PARINERYEXECUIIVE

E-1, DISEASE - ÊA

DESCRIPTIONOFOPERAIIONS/LOCAIIONS/vEHICLES (ACORDl0l,Addltlo¡atRemarksschedule,maybeattachedtfmor€spacetsrequtred)

City of Plattevílle
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTANVE

A

#nk^ffi]
O 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are regÍstered marks of AGORDACORD 25 (20141011



City of Platteville
Street I Alley Closing Permit Application Form

Describe Street / Alley to be Closed: Jay Street (between Southwest Road and lrene Street), lrene
Street (between Jay Street and Hickory Street), and Hickory
Street (between lrene Street and Main Street)

Date(s): I0/1-5/16 BeginningTime: 7am EndingTime: 10:30am

List Names and street Addresses of all Persons/Businesses Affected Below: oval

S¿.twt rlrr4w:*fr',a- lanl'trøvs\ P4fìçh, 135 ç-

i8-5 S, Wùo"q 5f
åeSS.,I4,*æA sT

5, þluniun g'T

V8ô ,Yû\a- 5T

Name of Requestor:

Address of Requestor:

Requestor's Contact Number: 
GDg 4Ql _ U qT

Reason for Request: åC[
bc^.r.dada'

- 5lÁArrv5 æua Q>r Çtoccls,

Call the City Garage at 348-8828 to request barricodes if needed. tf City barricodes are to be used, they
mustbepickedupnolaterthon2PMontheThursdavbeforeusage! Citypersonnelwillnotbecalledin
on Friday, Saturdoy or Sunday if thís is forgotten.

I affirm that I have checked with all of the persons that are affected by this requested street closing. The
objections are listBd gn an attached s

Do Not Write Below this Line - For Office IJle On
Police Department Review:

Street Depa rtment Review:

Common Council Review Date: -(1"Approved or

City Clerk:

Revised 9-2-1-4



City of Platteville
Street / Alley Closing Permit Application Form

Describe Street / Alley to be Closed:

Date(s): t{rSf ru Beginning Time: 7 t $.h^ Ending Time: )t'fi g,

List Names and street Addresses of all Persons/Businesses Affected Below: Aoproval

Yf^I55xÒ .ie+F,,ff^

57Ò -qu-{åt^tsf e*; J.Ï¡ias+&m o
N

N

or

or

S #Jrcvu ÞS,t¿l /scfr o,u T¡uz CJ#r^ K rð or N
v \-/

YorN

YorN

YorN
NOTE: Attach qdditionql sheets if necessory or use bsck side

Nameof Requestot' 
. )nhn*rr,o ßv\k

Address of Requesto '' I llniwrsùV ?tn i
Requesror,s Contact Number: 

{ o(ß - g,tf l_ I lqT
l-loÞLoe ür.'Y ?¿rad¿ SVE,","6 (),rea Ç>rReason for Requestt Zöllo

{toc*s,þa-nøts,gt4
NO'ÍE: Call the City Garage at 348-8828 to request barricades if needed. If City barricades ore to be used, they

must he picked up no later thon 2 PM on the Thursdav before usage! City personnel will not be called in
on Friday, Saturday or Sundoy if this is forgotten.

Date:

laffirm that I have checked with allof the persons that are affected by this requested street closing. The

r/ t ç l/t.
objections are li¡ted

Sierutur"ffi,
on an attached s

/ ' Og Nót tfr'rite Below this Line - For Office Ule Onl/ '
Police Department Review:

Street Department Review:

Common Council Review Date:

Decision: Approved or Denied

City Clerk: Date:

Revised 9-2-1-4



City of Platteville
Street / Alley Closing Permit Application Form

Describe Street / Alley to be Closed:

*¡UurU ffr¿¿f trarn ûrwwvd 4Y t fo ?¡ n ¿. Çr
Date(s): 

s¿ptu ^Abl._r
Beginnins Time:it ,24 (lo - -la'00 

Prn Ltv\oN
. Endins Time:) lt,Ç1 pn

List Names g!d Street Addresses of all Persons/Businesses Affected Below: Approval

kt ( i'qrt' Slru t //nv sua , Ll,L - fE Fn,u<n no btn|âÍå, ,rn Norr-J
.sf kllau(n nltr Ltrv verzs I rv Pnrzs1{ - Fz-É?ïrrr rrln zr,, (i\ or N

YorN

Yor N

NYor

NYor
NOTE: Attach additional sheets if necessary or use back side

Name or Requesto'' tÎr ,fr/6 tl .sn t{ r r J N/ I vEv.t I (v tzkef .\ f-t (ftPñî'p"
Address of Requestor: ßs S 

" 
irk 

'c 
,Lt>ntt ,st

Requestor's Contact Number: tA Og _ +Z+ / +,2 W

D t-VMPr cs

Reason for Request:

NFWMI **
NOTE: Call the City Garage ot 348-8ti28 to re-quest barricades if needed. tf City barricades are to be used, they

must be picked up no later than 2 PM on the Thursdøv before usage! City personnet witt not be cqlled in
on Friday, Saturday or Sunday if tltis is forgotten.

objections are fited on an attphed sheet.

signatu re : LH .ì ç---K4-.*ÐS-

I affirm that I have checked with all of the persons that are affected by this requested street closing. The

Darc, Alûr/S.' lC, 
^lVt'/ Dolttotwr'fleBetoittn¡tt¡n@

pot ice Depa rtment neview: 
¡p¡¡.,¡¡{ }Cy,.¡

Street Department Review: Arq! \_R 
^/J.',*(l \ ->= --( (^Common Council Review Date:

Decision: Approved or Denied

City Clerk: Date:

Revised 9-2-14



Rountree Gallery Board Minutes 
 
June 2, 2016 
 
Members Present: Cindy Schave, Rock Reidle, Grace Ann Bakken, Katherine Burk, Nancy Collins, 
Thomas Cabezas, Diana Bolander 
 
Members Absent: Kerry McCabe, Laura Grotjan, Lois Mueller 
 
1. President Cindy called the meeting to order at 6:34pm. 
2. Approval of Minutes: Katherine made a motion to approve the May 5, 2016 minutes. 
Cindy seconded, motion passed. 
3. Open Issues: Lori White Goodall research continues.  
4. New Business: Tom mentioned committee - Arts Mineral Point (AMP) that serves as an 
umbrella organization to coordinate events in Mineral Point. Brief discussion of defunct 
Platteville Arts Board. 
5. FOG Activities: no report 
6. Committee/Officers' Report: nothing to report 
7. Gallery Report: 
a. Moving and changes to office and gift shop area are ongoing. Hopefully completed before 
the Bud Wall exhibit opens.  Exhibit has been much more time intensive than expected but very 
excited about it. 
b. Optimist Club donation of $200 received for education program at gallery. Publicly and 
privately acknowledged. 
c. Gallery attendance for May was above average 497. 
d. Requested volunteers for Bud Wall installation and Heritage Day and Party in the Park. 
e. Reception reminder for Stormy Mochal on June 26th. 
f. Potential donation to Permanent Collection by John Mominee. 
8. Announcements:  Diana Bolander announced 2 grants have been secured- WI Arts Board 
and Platteville Community Fund for use to purchase hanging system for library as well as 
support opening exhibit and workshops. 
9. Next meeting: Thursday August 4, 2016, 6:30 pm at the Rountree Gallery. 
10. Rock made a motion to adjourn at 7:34pm and Nancy seconded. Motion passed. 
 
 
 



 

 

Commission on Aging 

June 17, 2016 Minutes 

 

The regular meeting of the Commission on Aging of the City of Platteville was called to order by Linda 

Appenzeller at 9:09a.m. in the lower level of the Senior Center. 
 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Linda Appenzeller, Janet Sudmeier, Pauline Gerhardt, Joyce McDermott, John Klosterman, Dolores 

Moen, Bill Cramer and Katherine Burke. 
 

Excused: Dick Bonin   Others in Attendance: Jon Meidinger 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A motion was made by Bill Cramer to approve the minutes from May 20, 2015, second by Pauline Gerhardt. 

Motion carried.   
 

REPORTS  

a. Senior Center Manager Jon Meidinger reviewed Senor Center programming and events. 

b. Common Council Member Katherine Burke reported on the council work session addressing storm 

water management and fundraising efforts for the library; as well as her upcoming marriage, name 

change, and new job. Katherine assured the Commission that she will remain a Platteville resident and 

council member.  
 

BUSINESS 

a. Jon updated the Commission on the progress of projects including the PACCE collaboration and 

planning of the Senior Picnic. 

 

NEW BUSINESS/COMMENTS/EVENTS 

a. Jon asked the Commission to review the Senior Center’s current transportation and code of conduct 

policies, and make recommendations for possible changes. Bill Cramer asked about the possibility of 

the city installing a bus shelter at the library. Senior Center Programming Coordinator Jill Goffinet 

noted upcoming events including a trip to Pinot’s Palette (Katherine & Pauline had positive things to 

say), monthly visits from Bryant Schobert – pharmacist at Southwest Health, and an outing to Music in 

the Park. The Commission thanked outgoing members Joyce McDermott and Dolores Moen for their 

service. 

 

NEXT MEETING 

Next meeting will be on Friday, July 15, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. in the lower level of the Senior Center. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion to adjourn was made at 9:48 a.m. by Joyce McDermott, seconded by Janet Sudmeier.  Motion 

carried. 
 

Submitted by Jon Meidinger, Senior Center Manager 



 

 
 

1 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
Minutes 

June 20, 2016 
 
A regular Board of Appeals meeting was held at 7:00 p.m., June 20, 2016 in the Council 
Chambers of the Municipal Building.  Let the records show that the meeting was properly 
posted according to the Open Meeting Law. 
 
Motion by Mary Rosemeyer, second by Tom Nall, to nominate Mary Miller as the Chairperson 
of the Board of Appeals.  Motion by Tom Lindahl, second by Tom Nall, to close nominations 
and cast a unanimous ballot for Mary Miller.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mary Miller called the meeting to order with the following members present:  
 
Regular members present:   Michael Knautz, Mary Miller, Mary Rosemeyer, Tom Nall 
Regular member absent:  Mark Meyers 
Alternate members present:  Tom Lindahl 
Staff present: Joe Carroll, Director-Community Planning & Development 
             Ric Riniker, Building Inspector 
 
Motion by Knautz, second by Rosemeyer, to approve the minutes of the April 18, 2016 meeting 
as printed.  Motion carried unanimously on a voice vote. 
 
Chairman Mary Miller introduced the first variance request. NOTICE is hereby given of the 
appeal of Paul Hefel wherein he seeks permission to replace the front door platform and rear 
deck with a wraparound deck at his property located at 700 N. Court Street, Platteville, Wisconsin. 
 The proposed construction would require a variance from Chapter 22.052(E) of the City of 
Platteville Municipal Code. 
 
Joe Carroll gave the staff report noting that the applicant would like to build a deck on the front 
and side of the house that does not meet the required street-yard setback.  The front porch is 
deteriorated and needs to be replaced.  The applicant would like to replace the porch with a 
wrap-around deck that extends from the front of the house around to the side and connect to an 
existing deck.  The new deck would not be any closer to the street than the existing porch, but 
would extend further along the front of the house.  The existing porch is a legal non-conforming 
structure because it is only about 8.5’ from the lot line.  The proposed deck would have the 
same setback, so a variance is required to enlarge a non-conforming structure that doesn’t 
meet the required 25 feet. 
 
Joe Carroll addressed the three standards that must be considered for each variance request.  
He stated that staff does not believe the application meets all three of the legal standards, and 
should therefore be denied.   
 
Board member Nall asked if the house was owner occupied.  Connie Orgel was present and 
said that it was owner occupied.  She presented pictures of the current house in regards to 
where they wanted to do the proposed construction.  She said they wanted to connect the front 
stoop with the side deck.  Board member Rosemeyer thanked them for not completing the 
project before asking for a variance.   
 



 

 
 

2 

Motion by Lindahl, second by Knautz, to approve the requested variance to Paul Hefel for his 
property at 700 N. Court Street, Platteville, Wisconsin.   Upon roll call vote, motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Chairman Miller introduced the next request.  NOTICE is hereby given of the appeal of the 
Badger State Chapter of the Lewis and Clark Trail Heritage Foundation, Inc. wherein they seek 
permission to erect a sign at 430 W. Main Street, Platteville, Wisconsin.  Said property is owned 
by Gamma XI Alumni Association.  The proposed sign would require a variance from Chapter 
22.11 of the City of Platteville Municipal Code. 
 
Joe Carroll gave the staff report noting that a commemorative sign is not listed as a specified 
type of sign in the R-3 District.  The proposed sign would be installed to commemorate the site 
where Alexander Hamilton Willard previously lived.  Mr. Willard was a member of the 1803-
1806 Lewis & Clark expedition.  The proposed free-standing sign would be installed on the 
property between the Sigma Tau Gamma fraternity and the parking lot for the Rountree Hall 
Apartments, and would be located near the sidewalk so it is visible to pedestrians.  The sign 
itself would be 2’ X 3’ in size.  The property owner has authorized the installation of the sign on 
the property. 
 
Joe Carroll addressed the three standards that must be considered for each variance request.  
He stated that staff does not believe the application meets all three of the legal standards.  
However, the fact that the proposed site for the sign is the most logical location, and other 
similar sized signs are allowed, staff believes consideration should be provided for this request. 
 
Board member Nall suggested that the sign be mounted on a cement base so that people 
reading the sign don’t create a mud area in the grass. 
 
Motion by Nall, second by Lindahl, to approve the requested variance to Badger State Chapter 
of Lewis & Clark for the property known as 430 W Main Street, Platteville, Wisconsin.  Motion 
carried unanimously on a roll call vote.  
 
The Findings of Fact forms were discussed: 

Paul Hefel - 1. No one spoke in opposition to the variance being granted.  2. The new 
construction will improve the area and will be no wider than the present porch. 
Badger State Chapter of Lewis & Clark – 1. The sign will help with tourism.  2. The 
property owner is agreeable to the sign being placed there.  3.  Historical site. 4. No one 
spoke in opposition to the variance being granted.    

 
There being no other business, motion made by Nall, second by Rosemeyer, to adjourn. 
Motion carried on a voice vote.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Carol Riniker, Secretary 
Board of Zoning Appeals                                        Date Approved:    07/18/16 



 

 
 

1 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
Minutes 

July 18, 2016 
 
A regular Board of Appeals meeting was held at 7:00 p.m., July 18, 2016 in the Council 
Chambers of the Municipal Building.  Let the records show that the meeting was properly 
posted according to the Open Meeting Law. 
 
Chairperson Mary Miller called the meeting to order with the following members present:  
 
Regular members present:   Mark Meyers, Mike Knautz, Mary Rosemeyer, Tom Nall, Mary 

Miller 
Alternate members present:  Tom Lindahl 
 
Staff present: Joe Carroll, Director-Community Planning & Development; Ric Riniker, Building 

Inspector 
 
Motion by Rosemeyer, second by Knautz, to approve the minutes of the June 20, 2016,  
meeting as printed.  Board member Mark Meyers added a correction to “regular member 
absent” portion of the minutes to read Mark Meyers, not Mike Meyers.  Motion carried 
unanimously on a voice vote. 
 
Chairperson Miller introduced the first item for action.  NOTICE is hereby given of the appeal of 
Tim & Diana Trendt wherein they seek permission to build an addition onto their house located at 
630 Rountree Avenue, Platteville, Wisconsin.  The proposed construction would require a side-
yard setback variance from Chapter 22.052(E) of the City of Platteville Municipal Code. 
 
Joe Carroll gave the staff report noting the applicant owns an existing single-family home at 630 
Rountree Avenue.  The applicant would like to build an addition onto the side of the house that 
does not meet the required side-yard setback.  The applicant had previously received approval 
of the same variance in 2014, but the project did not proceed and the variance approval has 
expired.  The floor plan for the project has been modified slightly, but the current variance 
request is the same as what was previously approved.  Mr. Carroll went on to explain that the 
existing house has a detached garage that is located on a separate lot to the north of the 
property.  The applicant would like to build an addition onto the house that would include an 
attached one-car garage, a kitchen and a bathroom.  The resulting structure would be 5 feet 
from the side property line (north), which does not meet the required setback distance.  The 
zoning ordinance requires a 10’ side-yard setback, therefore the applicant is requesting a 
variance of 5 feet. 
  
Joe Carroll addressed the three standards that must be considered for each variance request.  
In staff’s opinion, all three standards have not been met.  Therefore, the variance should be 
denied.   
 
Chairperson Miller asked if the gravel driveway would have to be paved.  Joe Carroll said the 
new area would have to be paved, but not the current area.   
 
Tim Trendt said he and his wife have been working with an architect to determine which layout 
would be the best for them.  They have decided that the proposed plan works best for them.  



 

 
 

2 

Mr. Trendt said the driveway would be paved up to the garage. He said that he and his wife are 
very sensitive to the age of their home.   
 
Motion by Knautz, second by Meyers, to approve the variance request (5 foot side-yard) to Tim 
& Diana Trendt for their property located at 630 Rountree Avenue, Platteville, Wisconsin.  Upon 
roll call vote, motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
There being no other business, motion made by Rosemeyer, second by Knautz, to adjourn. 
Motion carried on a voice vote.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Carol Riniker, Secretary 
Board of Zoning Appeals                                        Date Approved:  August 15, 2016                   
            



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
 

The Platteville Public Library Board of Trustees Board Meeting 

Tuesday, July 5, 2016   *   6:00 p.m.   
Meeting Room- Platteville Public Library 

Minutes 
Attendees: Director Jessie Lee-Jones, Paige Leahy, Katherine Westaby, Marilyn Gottschalk, Betsy Ralph-Tollefson, 
Carol Ann Hood, Erin Isabell, Kelly Podach Francis, Troy Maggied, and Anne Otto 

   
I. The meeting was called to order by Betsy Ralph Tollefson at 6:00 

    
II. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA - Motion to accept Leahy/Gottschalk seconded, motion carried.  

  
III. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, OBSERVATIONS and PETITIONS, if any:  none 

   
IV. REPORTS 

A. Municipal Financial report  

B. Director’s report  

C. City Council report- Temporary signage, and Pioneer Ford updates 

D. Foundation report – Nancy Kies was present to give the foundation report. $223, 000 raised so 
far.  Nancy can be reached at 778-3215 or foundation@platetvillepublic library.org.  Betsy is 
working on creating promotional videos to share via Facebook. 

 
V. BUSINESS  

A. June Bills – Motion to approve Otto moved, Maggied seconded, motion carried.  

B. Motion to approve the original Library Pay Plan proposed by the consultant for the Business 
Manager, and to include the Library Assistant position within the pay plan.  Maggied/Leahy.  
Motioned passed.  Ralph-Tollefson recused herself from the vote.  The Board will meet to 
address final appeal once the consultant has a recommendation. 

C. Personnel policy - Motion to accept the changes in the personnel policy, including a statement 
regarding the adopted compensation plan and addressing unpaid leave.  - Maggied/Podach 
Francis. Motion passed.   Ralph-Tollefson recused herself from the vote.  

D. Library logo options –Ralph-Tollefson recommended that we take the first two public.  Director 
Lee-Jones will put out the choices on the front desk for public vote. Staff and Board will discuss 
color scheme once the graphic has been decided.    

E. Exterior signage for current building - sign has been lifted and returned at night.  Signs are worn 
out and need to be replaced.  Director Lee-Jones will investigate temporary signage 
alternatives, will consult with Joe Carroll regarding upcoming temporary signage ordinance.   

F. New library discussion - Director Lee-Jones has been working with the City Attorney and Public 
Works Director Crofoot to determine whether or not we will need to use prevailing wages for 
bids for installing furniture.   Ralph-Tollefson suggested a book brigade for moving in day with 
kids, etc.  We will try to recreate photos from the 1976 move to our current location.  The Board 
discussed the need for a re-training of volunteers soliciting donations, would like to hear a 
“state of the campaign” update at the next meeting.   

 
     

ADJOURNMENT 7:37 motion to adjourn Leahy/Maggied, motion carried.     

 
 

Next Regular Library Board Meeting:   August 2, 2016 6:00 p.m.    



  
 

DOWNTOWN PARKING TASK FORCE 
MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, July 26, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 
Driftless Marktet (Upstairs)  

 

1. Welcome and introductions, Nick Pease, Natasha Geyer, Bill McBeth, Carlos Hernandez, Jack 

Luedke, Karen Kurt, Emma Cleveland.  Not in attendance, Brian Laufemberg, Katrina Hecimovic 

2. Determine a regular meeting time/date/location 

a. 4:30 pm on Monday – will pick depending on workload between meetings – NOT the 

last Monday of the month.  – Next meeting, tentatively set for August 22.  

3. Review charter and prioritize Task Force action items –  

a. Reviewed Charter to determine what the priorities of the task force are. Nick would like 

to determine the space and time as a priority. Natasha brought up that the lots behind 

Netux needed to be redone and a donor said that they would be willing to donate 

10,000 dollars. Jack noted that lots throughout town are in need of resurfacing such as 

Oak St. lot and the Post Office lot. Suggested that it would be a good idea to resurface 

one lot each year.  

b. Nick discussed the closure of 2nd street doesn’t make a lot of sense. The sign that 

designates the closure is too small for people to be able to see when they are turning 

left onto 2nd St. Nick also suggested that people aren’t comfortable coming downtown 

because of police enforcement. He stated it as a question of safety or a $20 ticket. 

Maybe place more 24 hour stalls closer to the 2nd St. area. Natasha brought up that 

during winter, there is a problem with plowing. The 3-6 am parking restriction is 

because of snow removal and also part because you can clearly see who is violating.   

c. Jack divided parking concerns into two sections – What could we do immediately?  - 

Speed limits, signs, lines. (invite a police officer?)  

d. Natasha – thinks maybe the lots behind the police department are being underutilized 

and should be reassessed.  

e. Jack brought up that Main and Chestnut could be better managed. Restriping for 

streets. Is this something that could go into CIP? (Check with Howard)  



  
f. Carlos asks that his employees park farther away, but how do we do this all along main 

street and make it convenient for employees. Designating specific lots for certain timed 

parking. Utilize empty lots and the bus/taxi system to get employees to the downtown 

area. 

g.  Nick would like to know where the money goes from parking tickets? Shouldn’t it go to 

helping making parking better?  

h. As the city continues to grow, and more developments are created, where do people 

park? Jack brought up the idea that maybe a public/private partnership could be 

created. He believes that with this partnership, we could look to the future to build a 

parking garage. If it isn’t in the future, it will never get done. Jack suggested that there 

should be a subcommittee of this group to focus on how to raise money for future 

parking infrastructure.  

i. It is important for this task force to communicate to the public that parking and 

speeding will get better – show that there’s a concern, and that we’re working on it. 

j. After much discussion, the following are the priorities of the group: Time Space 

allocation & closure of 2nd street, use of city lots, repaving city lots (quicker money is 

raised, quicker it will be done – probably not many grants... permeable pavers? Jack is 

looking into this) Realignment of Chestnut/Main Street.  

k. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) requests 

4. Brainstorm methods for outreach and feedback 

a. Nick suggested a questionnaire to give to downtown business owners and tenants, Nick 

also suggested talking to permanent residents only. Use hard copies – more personable. 

Try giving 4 options and maybe an other so that businesse owners could give an idea as 

well. Jack suggested that there should be both an electronic and hard copy – Jack has an 

email list. We should do a handout though for those who don’t check email. Task force 

take one day and go to downtown businesses. It would be helpful to know who the 

major landlords are downtown. Bill brought up that the general public should be asked 

as well – They are a group that is important to business owners. If residents and 

employees are taking up parking spaces, it will cause problems. Could a survey monkey 

be possible and have businesses let their customers know? Have a box that says here’s 



  
where I fall and what my usage is. Bill also thinks that at some point in time, there 

should be a public forum for people to voice their opinions prior to a council meeting.  

5. Business requests 

a. Handicap stall in front of Jayne’s Family Hair Care 

i. Bill brought up that maybe do a timed handicap stall from 8 am-4 pm. Jack 

thinks that there’s a state regulation for handicap spots and this might not be 

possible. This spot would also help with the Ticket. Bill wonders if there is a way 

to see how much usage it gets? Put a sign up and see how many people park 

there each day. Before the next meeting, it would be good to take a look at 

what Court Street and surrounding area has for handicap parking. Maybe look 

for where the senior center bus can park. This could potentially free up two 

spaces.  

b. Mark spots on Chestnut between north of Main Street 

i. All agreed that stalls should be marked.  

 

Homework – It would be beneficial to have the task force members to go around town and see how 

space is utilized.  

 

Next meeting will be used to just get informed. 

 

 

 

 

 



Cify of Platteville
STAFF REPORT FISCAL NOTE

_X_ Original _ Update

Title: Resolution Approving the Platteville Main Street Inc. Wireless Pro

Policy Analvsis Statement:
Brief Description And Analvsis Of Proposal:

Jack Luedke, Executive Director of Platteville Main Street, Inc. will make a presentation on this topic.

Platteville Main Street reqtìests city supporl for a downtown wireless network. This project would enhance acçess to
reliable, high speed data and help distinguish Platteville as a technology leader.

Main Street secured a glant of $4000 from the Southwest Cornmunity Foundation and $6000 from United
Development Solutions (developer of library block). They will use these funds as well as $ I 000 of their own monies
to begin the project. Main Street will pu'chase, install and maintairr the necessary equiprnent. Main Street is asking
for the following City support:

. Ability to link to the PCAN network through rhe City

. City staff support in installing equipment on City buildings and poles

Main Street requests the City to approve the attached Resolution and Agreement prepared by City Attorney Brain
McGraw regarding the Wireless Project. Main Stleet is not seeking finaucial assistance at this tinle.

Recommendation:
Approve the proposed Resolution and Agreement allowing the use of City facilities for the Platteville Main Street
Inc. wireless project.

Impact Of Adontinq Proposal:
Free outdoor wireless intemet selice will be provided to Main Street and Cify Park and other locations as funding
allows.

Fiscal Estimate:
Fiscal Effect (check/circle all that apply)
_X_ No fiscal effect

_ Creates new expendifure account

_ Creates new revenue account

_ Increases expenditures - 2015 or possibly 2016
_ Increases revenues

Increases/decreases fund balance - Fund

Budset Effect:
_ Expendihre authorized in budget - No change to

budget required

_ Expenclihre not authorized in budget - Budget
amendrnent required

Vote Required:
_X_ Majority

Two-Thirds
Narrative/assumntions About Lonp Ranse Fiscal Effect:

Budeet Amendment No. No Budget Amendment Required

Account Number Account Name
Budget
Prior to
Chense

Debit Credit
Amended
Budget

Fund CC Account Obiect

Totals

Department: City Manager's Offïce
red Bv: Karen M. Kurt Date: Ausust 9.2016



RESOLUTION NO. 16-18

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
PLATTEVILLE MAIN STREET, INC. WIRELESS PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Platteville (City) approved the
Agreement of Association and the Bylaws of Platteville Community Network, an
Unincorporated Association (PCAN) on January 10,2012; and,

WHEREAS, the City caused to be installed fiber optic cable to various City buildings,
which is connected to and apart of the PCAN; and,

WHEREAS, the City owns and maintains the fiber laterals as well as the software and
hardware (the City Owned Facility) which are necessary to connect to the PCAN Network; and,

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. Section66.0422 does not allow the City to construct, own, or
operate any facility providing broadband service, directly or indirectly, to the public unless
certain conditions set forth in said section are met; and,

WHEREAS, the City has a long history of collaboration and cooperation with local non-
profit organizations, including programs sponsored by Platteville Main Street, Inc.; and,

WHEREAS, Platteville Main Street, Inc. has submitted a proposal in which Platteville
Main Street, Inc. will own and operate and provide the equipment, technical support and
f,rnancing for free wireless broadband service in the Main Street District to end users; and,

WHEREAS, Platteville Main Street, Inc. providing free wireless broadband service to
end users will be a benefit to visitors and residents of the Platteville Main Street District.

1.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Platteville hereby resolves:

Platteville Main Street, Inc.'s proposal to provide wireless internet access to certain
locations as shown on the attached Main Street Wireless Project Plan (the Plan) free of
charge to end users and the Platteville Main Street, Inc. Wireless Project Agreement (the
Agreement) are approved, and the City Manager and City Clerk are authorizedto execute
the Agreement on behalf of the City.

In connection with the use of the City Owned Facility by Platteville Main Street, Inc. to
implement the Plan and provide such service to end users, the Council f,rnds and
determines the City will not construct, owTr. or operate the facility which provides
wireless internet access free of charge to end users, nor will the City itself use the City
Owned Facility to provide broadband service to end users.

Platteville Main Street, Inc. is authorized to install the equipment necessary or convenient
to provide wireless broadband access to end users on City buildings, light poles and
within City owned right of way, subject to the right of the City to oversee/supervise the
installation to prevent damage to City owned property or interference with the operation
of City infrastructure.

2.



4. The equipment to be installed and its general location as shown on the Plan is approved.
All equipment shall be purchased, installed, owned, operated and maintained by
Platteville Main Street, Inc., at its sole expense, including all information technology
support services required to keep the system functioning properly.

5. The City will allow Platteville Main Street, Inc. access to the intemet through its ISP
(Intemet Service Provider) WISCNET at no charge.

6. The City reserves, upon 6 months prior notice, the right to cancel and revoke any
authorization made or given herein by a subsequent Resolution adopted by a majority of
vote of the Common Council.

7. Should Platteville Main Street, Inc. determine, for any re¿tson, to discontinue providing
free broadband wireless access to end users, as set forth herein, it shall remove its
equipment within 60 days of the date that such service is discontinued, or may transfer
such equipment to the City, which may then sell or dispose of the property as the City
sees fit.

Approved and adopted by the Common Council ofthe City of Platteville this _ day of
,2016.

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE,

By: Eileen Nickels, Council President

Attest:

Jan Martin, City Clerk



ÄTTACTT&IE¡TT.-.MAINS-TRENT\ryJRELESSPROJß.CT

AND

PLATT T{I E hIAIN,$TREET WIRELESS PROJBC]T AG.REßMNTtr



THE PLATTEVILLE, MAIN STREET,INC.
WIRELESS PROJECT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Platteville (City) passed a Resolution
Approving the Platteville Main Street, Inc. Wireless Project on ,2016.: and,

WHEREAS, the City caused to be installed fiber optic cable to various City buildings,
which is connected to and apart of the PCAN; and,

WHEREAS, the City owns and maintains the fiber optic laterals as well as the software
and hardware (the City Owned Facility) which are necessary to connect to the PCAN Network;
and,

WHEREAS, Wis. Stat. Section 66.0422 does not allow the City to construct, own, or
operate any facility providing broadband services, directly or indirectly, to the public unless
certain conditions set forth in said section are met; and,

WHEREAS, the City has a long history of collaboration and cooperation with local non-
profit organizations, including programs sponsored by Platteville Main Street, Inc.; and,

WHEREAS, Platteville Main Street, Inc. has submitted a proposal in which Platteville
Main Street, Inc. will own and operate and provide the equipment, technical support and
financing for free wireless broadband service to visitors and residents of the Platteville Main
Street District which was approved by the Council in the Resolution referred to above; and,

WHEREAS, Platteville Main Street, Inc. providing free wireless broadband service to
end users will be a benefit to visitors and residents of the Platteville Main Street District.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Platteville Main Street, Inc. agree as follows:

Platteville Main Street, Inc. will implement its proposal to provide wireless intemet
access at certain locations as shown on the attached Main Street Wireless Project Plan
(the Plan) free of charge to end users.

In connection with the use of the City Owned Facility by Platteville Main Street, Inc. to
implement and operate the Plan, the City will not construct, own, or operate the facility
which provides wireless internet access free of charge to end users, nor will the City itself
use the City Owned Facility to provide broadband service to end users.

Platteville Main Street, Inc. acknowledges that its use of the City Owned Facility is
subject to the conditions set forth in paragraph2 and that Platteville Main Street, Inc.
may not charge end users for any service provided.

Platteville Main Street, Inc. may install the equipment necessary or convenient to provide
wireless broadband access to end users on City buildings, light poles and within City
owned right of way, subject to the right of the City to oversee/supervise the installation to
prevent damage to City owned property or interference with the operation of City
infrastructure.

1.

2.

a

4.



5. The equipment shall be installed in the general location as described and shown on the
Plan. All equipment shall be purchased, installed, owned and maintained by Platteville
Main Street, Inc., at its sole expense, including all information technology support
services required to keep the system functioning properly.

6. The City will allow Platteville Main Street, Inc. access to the internet through its ISP
(Intemet Service Provider) WISCNET at no charge.

7. The City reserves the right, upon 6 months prior notice, to cancel and revoke any
authorization made or given herein by a subsequent Resolution adopted by a majority of
vote of the Common Council.

8. Should Platteville Main Street, Inc. determine, for any reason, to discontinue providing
free broadband wireless access to end users, as set forth herein, it shall remove its
equipment within 60 days of the date that such service is discontinued, or may transfer
such equipment to the City, which may then sell or dispose of the property as the City
sees fit.

Dated this _ day of _,2076.

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE,

By: Karen Kurt, City Manager

Attest:

Jan Martin, City Clerk

Dated this _ day of _,2016.
PLATTEVILLE MAIN STREET, INC.,

, PresidentBy:

By: , Secretary



City of Platteville 
STAFF REPORT AND FISCAL 
NOTE 

_____ Original         ___X___ Update 
 
 

 

Title:  Preliminary Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP) 
 
Policy Analysis Statement: 
Brief Description And Analysis Of Proposal: 
 
Staff and Delta 3 Engineering has been working on a Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP) in accordance with the requirements of 
the WI DNR storm water discharge permit – commonly known as the Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit.  
Enclosed is a copy of the SWMP report and selected Appendices.  A full paper copy is available at Public Works. 
 
This SWMP is preliminary because it is also under review by the DNR.  We are required to submit to the DNR by August 28, 2016 
and have the SWMP approved and implemented by February 28, 2017.  The reason for the timeline is that there are 3 Ordinances that 
will need to be reviewed and approved.  These are the Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Ordinance, the Construction Site 
Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance, and Post Construction Storm Water Management Ordinance.   
 
The Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Ordinance is required to develop, implement and enforce a program to detect and 
remove illicit connections and discharges from the storm sewer system that could pollute waters of the State.    The City should follow 
the model Ordinance and make alterations as needed - such as who will administer and enforce the ordinance (building inspector, 
public works director, consultant, etc.).  We will also need to develop prosecution and penalties, plus develop specific requirements 
for discharge to local waters. 
 
The Construction Site Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance is required to develop, implement and enforce a program to reduce the 
discharge of sediment and construction materials from construction sites.  We have an Ordinance adopted in 2000, but the DNR has 
developed a new model Ordinance in 2013.  Staff suggests we replace our current Ordinance with the most recent model Ordinance.  
Like the other model ordinances, the City will have to make some alterations.  These alterations include:  Who will enforce the 
ordinance (building inspector, public works director, consultant, etc.).  Regulation of routine maintenance for project sites less than 5 
acres.  Regulation of land in the extraterritorial zone.  Requirements – if any – for surety bonds before issuing project permits.  
Inspection and enforcement procedures.  Small site permit requirements:  WI DNR regulates sites at 1 acre or larger.  Will the City 
regulate sites less than 1 acre? 
 
The Post Construction Storm Water Management Ordinance is required to develop, implement and enforce a program to regulate the 
quality of storm water discharges from new developments and redevelopment projects.  Like the other ordinances, there are alterations 
to be considered, such as who enforces the ordinance, regulations in the extraterritorial zone, inspection and enforcement procedures, 
peak flow requirements, small site permits – under 1 acre, review of the sample Ordinance exceptions to see if the City wants to 
accept all exemptions and what the City will require as part of the permit submittal process.  Enforcement of the Ordinance MAY 
require additional City staff and/or fees to outsource the review and inspections. 
 
The City is using the WI DNR approved WinSLAMM computer model to determine the amount of pollution as determined by the 
weight of sediment discharged to the streams and waters of the State.  The baseline model shows that the City has an area of 3,944 
acres – including the University and Airport – and without any activities or controls would discharge 916,064 pounds (458.032 Tons) 
of solids annually – or 0.116 tons per acre per year.  Agricultural uses are allowed up to 5 tons per acre per year of soil loss – or 43 
times the solids that we would discharge if we did nothing.  With the current activities and controls (sweeping, existing ponds, swales, 
etc., the amount discharged is 743,072 pounds (371.536 Tons) of solids – or 0.094 tons per acre per year.  This is a reduction of 
18.93%.  By the terms of the permit, we are to reduce the amount of solids by 20% by the end of the permit period – or get down to 
732,851 pounds (366.426 tons).  As we develop new areas these areas must reduce sediment by 80%.  For redevelopment areas, the 
standard is 40%.  One solution is to allow new development and redevelopment to come in and help us achieve the 20% overall goal.  
Another 65 acres of development in the next 10 years could potentially help us reach the goal.  Another way to meet the target is to 
construct new storm water management facilities.  Appendix L (enclosed) has some potential projects and 2016 estimated construction 
costs. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Staff recommends that the Common Council review and adopt the preliminary SWMP pending approval of the 
WI DNR.  Upon approval, staff will begin work on ordinance changes and options to meet the reduction goal for 
Council review.  
 
Impact Of Adopting Proposal: 
 
It would approve the preliminary SWMP to keep the City within the permit deadlines and to provide guidance on the 
development and implementation of necessary ordinances.   
 



 
Fiscal Estimate: 
Fiscal Effect (check/circle all that apply) 
_X_ No fiscal effect – to approve the plan 
___ Creates new expenditure account 
___ Creates new revenue account 
_X_ Increases expenditures – during implementation 
___ Increases revenues 
___ Increases/decreases fund balance - ____________ Fund 
 

Budget Effect: 
_X_ Expenditure authorized in budget 
        No change to budget required 
___ Expenditure not authorized in budget  
        Budget amendment required 
Vote Required: 
_X_ Majority 
___ Two-Thirds 

Narrative/assumptions About Long Range Fiscal Effect:   
 
There will be additional costs to implement the SWMP.   The Common Council will need to decide if the enforcement actions will be 
done with additional City Staff or through consultants.  The Common Council will need to determine if additional fees are needed to 
defray all or part of the additional costs to implement the SWMP.  The Common Council will need to decide if the City will hope for 
additional development to get us to our 20% reduction in 10 years as required by the permit, or if we will budget for projects in the 
CIP. 
 
Expenditure/Revenue Changes:   
Budget Amendment No. ________ No Budget Amendment Required __X___ 

 
Account Number 

 
Account Name 

Budget 
Prior to 
Change 

 
Debit 

 
Credit 

Amended 
Budget 

Fund CC Account Object      
    Totals     
 
Prepared By: 
Department:    Public Works 
 
Prepared By:   
                          Howard B. Crofoot, P.E. 

 
 
Date:   August 17, 2016 
            

 































































































































































































































































City of Platteville 
STAFF REPORT AND FISCAL 
NOTE 

_____ Original         ___X___ Update 
 
 

 

Title:  Bicycle Routes 
 
Policy Analysis Statement: 
Brief Description And Analysis Of Proposal: 
 
The Community Safe Routes Committee (CRSC) proposed installing bike lanes on Ridge Avenue with removal of parking from one 
side of the street to accommodate the bike lanes.  The Common Council approved the concept of the CRSC holding a public 
information meeting with affected neighbors to determine their thoughts on the proposal.  One of the major comments from that public 
meeting was that the citizens would like to see a more comprehensive plan for bicycle lanes in the City.  This is the result of the work 
by the CSRC to designate current and future bicycle routes throughout the City of Platteville. 
 
The CSRC looked at routes that would connect with the existing bicycle paths, such as the David Canny Rountree Branch Trail, the 
extensions up to Fairfield Drive, the extension to Knollwood Subdivision and others.  They also looked at connecting parks, schools 
and residential areas along the north side of Platteville. 
 
If approved by the Common Council, the CSRC would begin scheduling Public Information meetings for owners and residents along 
the routes.  We would solicit public comment and input on the best methods for implementing the bicycle routes.  It could be by 
designating sharrows like we did on Main Street in the Downtown area due to lower speeds, congestion and the desire to keep as much 
vehicle parking as possible.  It could be by designating bicycle lanes on the street.  Depending on the width of the street and the traffic, 
the recommendation might be to eliminate parking from one side of the street to accommodate the bicycle lanes – like on Ridge 
Avenue.  It could be that in certain areas, the answer is to wait for street reconstruction and include bicycle lanes on a wider street or 
on a separate path next to the street.  Individual solutions must be tailored to the street conditions and the community. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve the enclosed maps as the official bicycle routes for 
Platteville. 
 
Impact Of Adopting Proposal: 
 
It would designate the streets listed on the map as Bicycle Routes in the City of Platteville.   
 
Fiscal Estimate: 
Fiscal Effect (check/circle all that apply) 
_X_ No fiscal effect – to approve the plan 
___ Creates new expenditure account 
___ Creates new revenue account 
___ Increases expenditures  
___ Increases revenues 
___ Increases/decreases fund balance - ____________ Fund 
 

Budget Effect: 
_X_ Expenditure authorized in budget 
        No change to budget required 
___ Expenditure not authorized in budget  
        Budget amendment required 
Vote Required: 
_X_ Majority 
___ Two-Thirds 

Narrative/assumptions About Long Range Fiscal Effect:   
 
As streets are designated, there will be costs associated with signage, painting, etc. 
 
Expenditure/Revenue Changes:   
Budget Amendment No. ________ No Budget Amendment Required __X___ 

 
Account Number 

 
Account Name 

Budget 
Prior to 
Change 

 
Debit 

 
Credit 

Amended 
Budget 

Fund CC Account Object      
    Totals     
 
Prepared By: 
Department:    Public Works 
 
Prepared By:   
                          Howard B. Crofoot, P.E. 

 
 
Date:   August 17, 2016 
            

 



Bicycle Routes NE 2016

w I r',-
-'ry;,

.4

!

August 18,2016

Red Dots - Schools and UW Platteville

Red - Main Street Sharrow

1:12,000
0 0.1 0.2 0.4 mi

0.6 km

ArcGlS WebApp Builder

IA

Dark Green - Proposed Trail

0 0.1 5 0.3



Bicycle Routes NW 2016

ü EEI
:l

August 18,2016

Red Dots - Schools and UW Platteville *ì G.ee.,- savec Traii

Dark Green - Proposed Trail

1:12,000
0 0.1 0.2 0.4 mi

0.6 km

ArcGlS V\,þbApp B uilder
Red - Main Street Sharrow

0 0.1 5 0.3



Bicycle Routes SE 2016

August 18,2016

Red - Main Street Sharrow

Lt. Green * Paved Trail

1:12,000
0 0.1 0.2 0.4 mi

0.6 km

ArcGlS \,bbApp Bu¡lder

Dark Green - Proposed Trail
0 0.1 5 0.3



Bicycle Routes SW 2016

August 18,2016

Rod Dots - Schools and UW Platteville

Red - Main Street Sharrow

.l; 'i,r :' ,, :. - -- ' ,..:l .r - :-t 
-- *,:, 

.

*t. Gieen - r'u,r6g Tr2il

Dark Green - Proposed Trail

1:12,000
0 0.1 0.2 0.4 mi

0.6 km

ArcGlS \ ,bbApp Builder

0 0.15 0.3



Bicycle Routes 2016

August 18,2016

Red Dots - Schools and UW Platteville

Red - Main Street Sharrow

(ìr;¡'lrl;; ii;,¡,:"¡,,'.',i lr,rl

Lt. Green - Paved Trail

Dark Green - Proposed Trail

0.225

1:19,200
0.45 0.9 mi0

t-

0 0.35 0.7 1.4 km

ArcGlS WebApp Builder


	Agenda 8-23-16
	III. Zoning Ord. Amendments Signage
	IV.A.Council Minutes
	IV.B. Payment of Bills
	IV.C. B& C
	IV.D. Licenses
	IV.E. Permits
	VI.A.1. Rountree Gallery Board
	VI.A.2. Comm on Aging
	VI.A.3. Board of Appeals
	VI.A.4. Library Board
	VI.B.1. Downtown Task Force
	VII.A. Res 16-18 Main Street Wireless
	VIII.A. Storm Water Management Plan
	VIII.B. Bicycle Routes

	Button1: 


